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2020 30

(Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited)

KY1-1104
309GT
(P.0. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)

03 6775 1636

TRP
(Nikko AM Offshore Funds — TRP US Core Growth Equity Fund)

10 1,069

1,000

2020 30 UFJ
106.87
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100-0005

Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited
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Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited
CIBC
CIBC Bank and Trust Company 2018 24
(Cayman) Limited
2018 24
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
UFJ PB 2018 23
2018
)
2020 2003 26
)
2020
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() 2020

2020 480,000 5,130

106.87 480,000 106.87

1,000,000 1,000,000 687

)

2003 26

2009 27
)

2020
EC2Y 5AD 480,000 100.00
Nikko AM Global Holdings (1 London Wall, London EC2Y 5AD, United
Limited Kingdom)
2020
2020
(
1925
50
150
(
( 2018
2018
CIMA
CIMA
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MSCI Inc.

MSCI Inc.
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MSCI Inc.
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NOMURA-BPI
FTSE

FTSE Fixed IncomeLLC FTSE Fixed Income LLC

FTSE Fixed Income LLC

JP GBI-EM

JP. Morgan SecuritiesLLC
JP. Morgan SecuritiesLLC
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2020
55,026,076.92 99.07
517,549.16 0.93
55,543,626.08
5,935,947,319 100.00
2020

us

2,920,704.72

17.32

50,600,391.26 18.84 55,026,076.92 99.07
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2019 2020
2018 12 31 50,551,939.00 5,402,485,721 9.12 975
2019 12 31 36,019,078.00 3,849,358,866 11.61 1,241
2019 36,317,883.26 3,881,292,184 10.30 1,101
42,714,215.00 4,564,868,157 10.86 1,161
43,951,131.19 4,697,057,390 11.19 1,196
42,486,562.46 4,540,538,930 10.88 1,163
36,885,661.84 3,941,970,681 10.66 1,139
10 38,295,732.29 4,092,664,910 10.89 1,164
11 38,641,876.12 4,129,657,301 11.42 1,220
12 36,019,078.00 3,849,358,866 11.61 1,241
2020 37,329,707.79 3,989,425,872 12.04 1,287
37,615,837.67 4,020,004,572 10.82 1,156
37,753,872.07 4,034,756,308 10.07 1,076
43,411,905.90 4,639,430,384 11.56 1,235
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2018 12 31 1,739,101,517 8,995
2019 12 31 1,390,992,944 11,126
2019 1,711,661,614 10,041
1,799,739,463 10,558

1,729,194,056 10,846

1,610,237,984 10,530

1,282,071,182 10,286

10 1,312,458,928 10,489

11 1,372,944,236 10,981

12 1,390,992,944 11,126

2020 1,261,852,726 11,517
1,101,952,403 10,368

1,120,488,546 9,589

1,297,305,497 10,979

2020
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2019 12 31

TRP
2019 12 31
42,725,169 48,192,908 5,150,376
2,673,486 285,715
2,243 240
54,987 5,876
50,923,624 5,442,208
1,663,420 177,770
140,000 14,962
81,726 8,734
59,173 6,324
58,318 6,232
11,891 1,271
3,772 403
3,743 400
36,709 3,923
46,227 4,940
2,104,979 224,959
48,818,645 5,217,249
41,338,739 4,417,871
7,479,906 799,378
48,818,645 5,217,249
1,390,992,944
125,027 11,126
36,019,078
3,102,300 11.61 1,241
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TRP

2019 12 31

19,499 2,084
19,499 2,084
388,742 41,545
167,458 17,896
119,052 12,723
76,071 8,130
17,942 1,917
14,998 1,603
9,997 1,068

610 65
251,153 26,841
1,046,023 111,788
(1,026,524) (109,705)
3,540,169 378,338
252,700 27,006
3,792,869 405,344
13,478,170 1,440,412
(497,439) (53,161)
12,980,731 1,387,251
16,773,600 1,792,595
15,747,076 1,682,890
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1,577,193

79,280
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(1,026,524) (109,705)
3,792,869 405,344
12,980,731 1,387,251
15,747,076 1,682,890
1,045,960 111,782
16,835,194 1,799,177
(7,715,443) (824,549)
(43,497,164) (4,648,542)
(33,331,453) (3.562,132)
(17,584,377) (1,879,242)
66,403,022 7,096,491
48,818,645 5,217,249
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TRP

2019 12 31

15,747,076 1,682,890
(13,809, 000) (1,475,768)
48,072,000 5,137,455
(3,540,169) (378,338)
(13,478,170) (1,440,412)

497,439 53,161
4,664 498
33,887 3,622
45,471 4,859

) (0.321)

(4,362) (466)
(1,436) (153)
(31,106) (3,324)
140,000 14,962
29,774 3,182
33,706,065 3,602,167
17,881,154 1,910,959
(49,549,187) (5.295,322)
(31,668,033) (3,384,363)
2,038,032 217,804
635,454 67,911
2,673,486 285,715
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2019 12 31 2019 12 31
8,995 9.12 975
(198) (0.17) (18)
2,329 2.66 284
2,131 2.49 266
11,126 11.61 1,241
23.69 27.30
1,390,993 36,019 3,849,351
1.94 1.67
(1.91) (1.64)

@
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TRP
2019 12 31
)
98.7
98.7
98.7
T Rowe Price Funds SICAV - US Blue Chip
2,559,368 . . 98.7 48,192,908
Equity Fund Class 1

42,725,169 48,192,908

48,192,908

42,725,169 98.7 48,192,908

1.3 625,737

100.0 48,818,645

(5,217,248,591 )

2019 12 31
)

1,910 Alphabet Inc. C 5.2 2,551,001

2,303 Amazon.com Inc. 8.7 4,257,478

15,331 Facebook Inc. A 6.4 3,138,579
y (5 ¢
C
Citi PB 1,336,223,532 2020 30 (12,351,362) (36,704) (36,704)
Citi PB 42,735,775 2020 30 (391,611) 2,243 2,243
Citi PB 12,852 2020 30 (1,395,011) (5) (5)
2,243 (36,709) (34,466)
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TRP
2019 12 31
TRP
2018 14
2012 10 15
2009 a CIMA
2018 28
CIBC
UFJ PB
FASB ASC
946

GAAP
GAAP
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NAV

GAAP
GAAP

ASU  2015-07

2019 12 31

2019 12 31

2,243 2,243

55/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
ooooodooodoooooodd

2,243 2,243
2019 12 31

36,709 36,709

36,709 36,709
FASB ASC 740

50
15 80,819 10 13,220
46
8,450,948 27 255,024
SICAV
SICAV us
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2018 12 31 15,851,083 50,551,939 66,403,022
1,045,960 16,835,194 17,881,154
(7,715,443)  (43,497,164)  (51,212,607)
3,617,967 12,129,109 15,747,076
2019 12 31 12,799,567 36,019,078 48,818,645
2018 12 31 193,351 5,544,008 5,737,359
10,956 1,577,193 1,588,149
(79,280) (4,018,901) (4,098,181)
2019 12 31 125,027 3,102,300 3,227,327
2019 12 31 102.37 11.61
10.00
10,000
2018 18 2018 27
10
10
0.001 100 0.01
0.001 10,000
2019 12 31
2019 12 31 1,663,420
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2019
ASC 815-10-50
a b
c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
2019 12 31 MNA
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MNA
@
Citi PB 2,243 (2,243)
2,243 (2,243)
2019 12 31 MNA
MNA
@
Citi PB 36,709 (2,243) 34,466
36,709 (2,243) 34,466
@
2019 12 31
2,243 36,709
2019 12 31
268,244 (497,439)
0.28
0.03 2.5 0.25 2.5
0.24 0.22
2019 12 31 167,458 2019 12 31 11,891
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0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05
50,000
2019 12 31 119,052 2019
12 31 59,173
0.015
15,000 2019 12 31
14,998 2019 12 31 3,743
0.03
2019 12 31 17,942 2019 12
31 3,772
10
0.65
2019 12 31 388,742 2019 12 31
81,726
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13
10
12
14
15
2020 17
2020 2020 17 2,477,272
5,342,597
2020 2020 17 22,756,542
19,827,387
COVID-19
2020 11 2019 COVID-19
() ( )COVID-19
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

December 31, 2019

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

LETH

bramtrn gre g in Lirdierly g Fused ot Fair vy (eost of UISDF A3, 725, £69) [F]a] 48,197,508
Caiky LETadeE
brw ol zed appreciation on foreend foregn ourrenoy exchange contracks 234
Praped s 54 557
Total msets 50,9236
Lishligler:

Papablefor Units redeem ed LGER 3G
A OIEAEESLion EpenGe 140,000
Airaid diptrben o Dkl E: e
Areed austoden and sb-sdmnisrator's fee 173
Acoruad professonl fees Lo RLL]
Apiriaad finge e e 11,838
acrruad agent com pany’s feas 3783
e trugtion i 3,743
Lrewal hird deprciation on forw ard lorign aarrency sachange cordrecs 35,709
Oty anperices (el
Tt bkl ties 104873
Met Aspety Attributable ta Unithaldan uso 818,665
Brabyis of Net 2 soti

Egd i capetal L] AL 33073
Tokml distributable sarnings TATS 508
et Apppte At ributable to Unithaldary usD ABEIRAS
Met Anset Valus par Uniy

{7 Hedged Ol IPY 1,590,992, 9448 = 175,027 Lnatd cutstardng) il L1268
P Clacss UED 36,013,078 + 3, 102, 300 Linits oot s anding) LD 1161

The accompaming notes are an integral part of these Snandal staternents.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Imamtmant Incema:
brneres L&D 19,453
Total Irvestment Income 18,455
Expanaas;
Destrib ubor's foes 308,742
Ilanagement fess LT 45N
Chisrean and b -adm niaraor's fess 118087
Profrrea sl lees TEO7TE
Agert com pany s e LTS
Trustes fees 155
Teardler agent foes azar
B agitrahon faw 610
b Eparee 251153
Totml Erpanoes LO&6OTE
at Invertmoent Lovies 1056 524)
Rasboed and Wereslized GuingTlanier):
Fnalipied gaines adted )
Ittt s falin of Linderbying Fund 1540, 165
Fomeign ourmency transactiors and forw ardfore gmiconrency eschange contracts 252 100
Mt reakied geng A FOLBES
Tharge bnunreshzed appreceticnderecaton)
Irredneniend € in Liedierd yin g Fund 3,478,170
Faruign curmancy Ir i el e g g Eurrdney st hange contietd 37 AT
Mt clrange i unnead nid Bppreciaton 13,980, T31
Fiog reabred and unredsed geins TREET]
et incremis in et B1iet redulking from eperationn USD 15,747 076

The accompaming notes are an integral part of these Snandal staternents.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Incraans [Daorearn]in Mt Sz ek from:

Dparation:

it i et vl b Bl

Mot realaed geing

et chrge in ureesliced apprecimeon

T P i A AR S vl g RS DfEratio ng

Capits| Transsctioni:

Ut pnd
Y Hedged Cass (10,956 Unas)
SO e [ 1,577,193 Uit}

Uity redanmed
WP Hadgaed Class [ 79, 280 Und )
LED Ok (4,018,501 Unk 1]
et decrease o net sstets revdbing from capitaltransagtions

Total Decrears in bat daete

Het Sasetic
Bupnnmg ol pear
Ered of yopr

D [%036.524)
3 Ta2L.B6Y
12,980,731

L5 747,078

105,960
15,535,194

[, 75 843)
[43,457, Led)

(33,331, 253
— (758AITT)

65, 403,022
(LN TN

The accompaming notes are an integral part of these Snandal staternents.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Carh Aows from operathng ackivitine
et morgase et aEsed 5 reolting from operations LED 15 747,008
st ens o mcoecde the et inoresse in rel S et remablieg from operetions te ret oech used in

BpErating skt
Prrchng of irmpsm ents (12,609,000
Prooeeds from sale anad maturity of e ments A 07000
Aeshiped gars on innkEm oS m SUFTiES (3,540, 168}
Dhiasnd b u ARl Bed BppdBaEliSa G iividm el [12.478,170)
Tharege i uncesh ted dienreciation on forward foregn murincy mvchange tontr sty 497,450
Changa In myete and labikigr related to operaticn:
Dhecrease in prepad assets 4,668
BT i B Cr Ul eurkle i el sk darkes i O P 0 s it 33,887
Enéripade in afiruid pdolesilonal Lisd 45,471
Durease in sccnued bruses fees (%]
Chcroase in actnsd management feas {4,362}
i i St Sgirt oo pany's Fists {LA36)
DCroass in scsnoed digribudor's fees {30106}
Ensereiels 7 g Erupd go el Db Al dupleiis 40,000
Encreaas in acirund oiher axpenses 20,774
Kt cash provided by operating acthitios 33,706,065
Cath Aow provided by finandng scthities:
Prooeeds from Lnks reed 17,300,154
PR RS o U ng dade el 43,549, 187}
et eaah (uigd in) Finantin g schisies — (3 G6R O3]
et incrama im cach snd forsipn oameancy 2,038 O3
Ciikr i P e ciney @ Bignsicg o pirar £35,454
Caih sl Pareign eurraney st end of year uso 2,673,486

The accompaming notes are an integral part of these Snandal staternents.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND

FINANCLIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Bet Adrt Vilum, bigonivg of yewr

Bt e asiment o™
Mot s ad and uregaized gang

BB P R ST S Pt A e DEEERIO NG

Bhat Apunt Valuw, #nad ol paar

Toted rdtuen

RaionTupplenendal dets

Bdat i anad of yose (D00

Fatio of guperees b0 gvarsge not apsety

Batio of et ny estment income B0 Gy erage net asset s

I Himdged Clags WD Clags
Forthe Year Ernvded For the Yaar Endad
Deces ber 31, 209 o bar 31, 2019

Jy B, 995 LD 9,13
[13E] [

238 166

1.151 2,49

o 111 Uil HET
Z1B9% I

A L3098 LIED 5,009
1L Ri% 16T%

(L91%) [LBA%]

* Cal cufated using aver age Lirits sui sanding for the yeer

The accompaming notes are an integral part of these Snandal staternents.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2019

{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Numbar % of Mt

Cumarny o Shrss Sepurity Destription Ak Market Valus
WHVE STRAENT 1 LMD ERLYIBG FLRHD @R.T7)
B MIOURG BT
TSN UKD f0,

[F,° ] PR T Rosm Price Furds B0 - UG Blug Chip £ gty Fund Om ™ N uso AR 192 8
TOTAL LLEEMBDURG (Cost URDZ FF% 105 A8.097.508
FOTAL IRVELTRSENT 1N UMD ERLBNG. UMD 48,192 908
TOTAL INVTRTRSE TS (ot LISDAZ, T25 BEE) ST, Ui FTR PR T
CATH AMD OTHER AXSETS I EXCIVS OF IARIITIEY T R - L
W AT 10 A uin AL

" There are four investmeants held by the Iavetment Company for skich the Fund's proportionsl share of the Imeestm ot sxoeeds 5 peroent of
et gt o of December 51, 1019, Investepntys sne preserted in table beloe

% of Mak
Cumerey  Shine Security Daderption i S Plarkien Wilus
(L] (R} siphabet Inc. C SI% AR
] L3I amazonooming BT 475747
1] A3 Fecekook ine b A% LidnEm
1B Hedged tass Forwsrd Forelign Cumency fuchange Contracts
Mot L sl el
Meorianal Sertlam art Mastianal Unrealied  Urrsalited  Apprecistion
By Comstepay : Dats $all & Spgraciation {Depreciatian] iatien}
P OliF 1.336.301,.50 DI/20/2020 USD  (12,F5L.367) (1] = UED {35,704) USD (36 T04)
o Onem AL TS OLM/20 U {151 0 - Laad
U G 15181 oLfESa0 (1.¥5,01 1) - i {3
LrsD 2143 U b6 T09)  USD (3‘4.ﬁ
Currgrey legard
oy laparice van
(Lo U Bl

The accormp amying notes arean integral part of these finandal staterments.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

TRP LG Core Growth Bquity Rund (tha “Fund™) is 8 series trust of e MNikko AM Olfshere Funds, an cpen-ended unit irust
established by a supplemental trust deed dated May 14, T8 [the “Supplemnental Trust Deed”), under the Laws of the
Cayrnean Islands, Nikka A% Offshars Fund s was sstablishad by & master trust deed dated Derober 15, 2002 {the “Master
Trust Deed™), under the laws of the Cayman Idands and is liomnsed with the Cayman Blands Monetary Authoring porsuant
ta section 4{110a) of the Muatizal Funds Law (2009 Revision], The Fund commanced aperstions on June I8 2018,

Tha Fund's sesets are managed on a day to dey basis by Nikko AM Global Caryman Lirited [the “Manages"], The Manager
delegates investmant management dutes to Nikks Aster Management Co., Ltd, {the "mmstrent Managert), The
Irvestment Manager may delegate responsbility for the management of the investment and re-meestrment of ceriain parts
of the Fund's imestreant portfolio 1o cther investment managers, The aderinisration of the Fund is delagated 1o Brown
Brothers Harriman & Co. (the “Custodian” and *Sub-Admrinistrator’], abmited partership organized under the baws of the
State of Mew York,

Tha investrnent ob jctive of the Fund is 1o achieve growth in the value of units over the long terrn By Imesting intoa fund,
witich Irvests mainly in a diversifled portfolie of stocks of lange and medium daed “blus chip® companies in the United
Guates,

Lingder the terrrs of the Supplementsl Trust Deed and the Master Trst Dead, CIBC Bank and Trust Company [Cayman
Lirmited {the “Trustes” and the “Adminfsrator” ] is named a5 Trustes of the Fund,

The Manager sppointed Mitswbishi LEI Morgan Stanley PB Secufities Coy, Lid to- act as Agent Cormpany [the “Agent
Company™) and 1o st &s Clarnibuter [the “Distdbuter™) of Unitain lapan,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Fund i3 an invegtrment Company thae Tollows the scommting and reporting guidance in FASE Accounting Standards
Codification S48,

U of Ertim ot

Theaccompamying fnanda statemants hinee bean prepared inaccordance with acocunting ::In'r'tipllr:-g:rﬂ‘ﬂp accepiad in
the Uritad Stanes of America UL5 GANPY) The praparation of finanoal staternsnts in aocondancs with LS. GAAP reguires
the Fund's mansgement to make estimates and assumptions that alfect the reported amounts of assets and lisbilities and
disclonres of contingent assets and lisbites at the date of the financid statements and the reported amounts of
revendss and exparses furing the reporting pericd. Actusl remdts, induding the ultimates smount resized upon the sl of
[ v impestrnen s, coubd differ from thoss estirnates o such differences may be sgnilicant.

Bomis of Aecounting

Seaurity and conbractusl transactions are recorded on @ tradefcontract-dete basis. nbarest income is recorded on an
affsctive yiald basis, net of sy applicable withhalding e, Interest axpense and othaer expanges ora recorded on an accresl
basis Reslizad gains and |oses from seourity transactions are computed on the basis of the average cost of the saarities
wld o covered, hanges in the wduation of imestments e recorded in the Staterrent of Operations 8 wealiped
appredation o depredation,

Valuation of irestments

Iresstrnants in other investment companies ("hedge funds®™) ore vilued on the basis of the Net Asset Vaue [“NAV") per
share as reported by the adminfstratons of those entitfes at the t date bosed upon policies and procedures
adopted by the Furd. In coses where the Fund could in the normsl course of business radesm its undardying immestment,
such imvestments are generally valued at the net aset valuation s provided by the adminisrabors of those entifes.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

SLUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [continuad)

Valuation of Imvertments [coatin ued]

Im o whare the Fund is unable e redesn its underlying investrment, such invesrnentsin portfolio funds are also valusd
ot the net asser vailuations prowded by e admirsrances of those entifes, provided that the underlying portfolle funds
have calaudared their net asset valubtions in scoordance with scocunting messurement guidance which is spolicabile to
Emwpestmient cormparies e, Imesstments within such underyng investrient companies have been fair valued in accordange
with applicable LIS GAAF, unless the investment Msnager datermines that such a valustion wodd net be the mas
wproprisce indicator of fair valueg, inwhich case the investmant would be Talr walued by the Invessment Manager,

Im accordance with the authoritative guidance on far valus messuraments and dsdosures under LS, GAAR, the Fund
discloses the far value of its imeestmants in 8 Werarchy thar prioritizes the inputs 1o waluation techriques used o Mmesmure
e fadr walue, The Peerarchy gives the highest pricrity 1o valuations based wpon unbdisted quated prices in active marken
for identical assets or Habdlides (Level 1 measurament) and the lowest priordty to valuations based upon unobservable
bnputs that are significant 1o the valuation (Level 3 messurements), The guidance establishes thres levels of the fair value
heranchy as follows:

®  Level 1 — nputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices In active markets for identical Innvestrnents that the Fund
hae the ability toacoess af the meamurament date;

®  Level 7 - Imputs ather than quoted prices that are sgrificant and observalile for the assst or lisbility either
directly or indirectly, including inputsin markets that &re not condderad to be active;

*  Level 1= lnputs that are sgnificant and uncbservable,

Irpuats are used in applying the vasious vl uatdon tachnigues and broadly refer to the acsempions that market participants
use ko makee valuation decislons, Induding assumptions about risie Inputs may include price information, specic and broad
et data, liguicity statistics, andd ot Tactors, A fnancial insmument’s lewel wi thin the Tar value Merardhy s based upon
the loweest lewel of any Inpet that Is signiffcant o the far value messurement. However, the determination of what
comitfutes “choanvable® requires significant judgment by the Invesment Manager. The Invesomant Maniger considers
cbpenvable data to be market data which is readily mmitable, regularly dstibuted or updated, rellable and verifiable, not
proprieary, and prosided by independent sources thal are activaly invalvad in the rd evant market, The categorization of a
fimancial insbruerent vathin the hisrarchy 5 based upon the pridng ransparency of the instrument and does not necessarly
oomespond to the vestment Manager’s percaived riskof that instrument.

Irvestmants whose valees are basad on the quoted markst prices in active markets, and therafore classifed within Leval 1,
wonld include actively traded sguides, cermin LLS, govermment and soverdgn cbligaticns, and certain money marker
seaurities. The Investment Manager would not adjust the gquoted price for such instruments; even in sitions where the
Fund hald alarge posidon and o sale couldreasonably impact the quoted price,

Irvesiomiants that rade in marken that are not conpiderad to b active, but are valued based on guoted maret prices,
dealer quotations or aternative peicing sources supported by chservable inputs are dasified within Level 2. These induds
imprsbmentgrads debt securites, short-term rvestments and Torward foreign currency exchange contracts. As Leval 2
tvestments Include pogitons that are not traded in active mareets andfor are subject to transfer restricions, valuations
ey b it justed o reflect iiquidity and/or non-rransferability, which are generally based on svailable marketinformation,

Irvestrnants. classiBad within Level 3 have sgnificant unchservable inputs, s they wodd Trade infreguently, Leva 3
instruments would Indude assetbacked securities and collateralized morigage cbligations. As chservable prices are not
wvalable for thoss securities, the Fund would use valuation tedhnigues to devive the fair valus,

Tha inputs of methodelogy wied Tor valuing secunities ane not necessarily an indication of the risk assodaned with investing
n chose securities.

I ageordance with ASU 2015407, the Fund's imvesement In other impesomant companies has ot Been cotegoriand in the
lasir waipe vier archy mer in s rall forward of investment actidty,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

SLUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [continued)

Valuation of Invertments [contin ued)

The fellowing tabile preserits the finandal instrurments carred on the Statement of Assets and Liabdites by caption and by
tevel within the valuation MWerarchy as of Decermber 31, 3015, Further classifications of the Snandal ingiruments ae
presantad in the Portlaio of Imestmants.

Bavets ot Fair Valus Fair Valua 32
Level 1 Levnl 2 Level 3 Decemberdi, 2019
Forward Foreign Curency
Exthbrps Conlrueti I‘JSE - [ a] 2,343 (] - IS 2,243
Total [ = =] EFLE] e - WD 4243
Ushimier 38 Fair Vakae Fair Valua 3t
Levell LevtZ Leveld Deember 31, 2009
Farwird Fofegn Curancy
Exchargs Contracts ] - L 36,709 [1.1s] - e 35,
Total [ - T3] 5 709 Lo - 1] 36,708

Foreign Curremoy Transletion

Aszets and |labilides had in currendes other than United States Dollar (“UEDR or the *Functdonal Curency”] are randated
o the Functional Currency &t the rate of axchange preailing ot the finendal statement date, Inoome and axperieg are
trarnsiated at the rate of exchange prevaling at the date on which the income or expense is incumed. Realized and
urraalized gains and |osses arising on foreign carrency ransactions are induded in the Staternant of Operations in the
peviod inwhich they ocour.

The Fund does not isclate that portion of the results of operations redting from changes in foreign exchange rabes on
imyestments from the luctuations arising from dhanges in market prices of searities hed. Such fluctuatihons e induded
with tha net reall ped and unreaized galn or boss from investments.

Imeovmn e Toes

Under the ourrent bsws of the Cayman Islands, there are no incomes, withholding, capital gains o other toees panyable by
the Fund, in cortain jurisdictions other than the Cvman Idands, foreign tases may be withhad at source on dividends and
interest recalved by the Fund. Capital gains derived by the Fund in such jurdsdictions generally will be exerrot from foreign
fncome o withhoiding tawes at source, The Fund Enbends to conduct [t affiales such that iowll not be subject wincome tax
i amy jurisdiction. As o result, no prosision for incomie tawes has basn made in the financia statemants. Unitholders many
b tiopad on thar proportonate share of the Fund's tax banis indames based on thair individud circumstancas,

Tha Fund failowrs the suthoritative guidance on sccounting for and disdosure of uncartainty in e poaitions [Financial
Acoounting Standards Board [“RASET) - Accounting Standards Codification 740, whidh regunes the Manager o determine
whether a tan position of the Fund is more fikaly than not to be austaned upon esamination by the applicoble taxing
authority, Including resciution of any related appeals or lifgation prooesses, based on the technical merits of the posidon
For tax positions meseting the more fiigdy than not threshald, the tax benefit recognized in the financid statements s
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent gelihcod of being realized upon wiimate settement
with the relevant taming authority. The Mange has determined that there is minima or no effect on the fnancial
saterments belng under this authortathee guldance.

Forwerd Foreign Currenay Enchange Controcts

The Furd may anter inpo forward lforsign aurrency sichange conradts 1o hedge againgt forsgn dummengy sschang @ rate
rigks on all or @ porton of non-USD dencminated investments o for efficlent portfdio management purposes. When
enterdng mto & forward foreign currency exchangs contract, the Fund Bgress to recsive o deliver @ Bued quantdoy of
foraign curmency for an agreedupon price on an agreed future date, These contracts are valued dally, and the Fund's net
equity therein, representing unrealipsd appreciationf{deprediation) on the contracts a6 meawred by the difference
barpwisen che forward foreign currency exchange rates at the dates of entry Into the contraces and the fonward rates of the
reporting date, is included in the Statement of Assets and Lisbllides Aealized and unrealized gaing and losses are Induded
b the Statement of Operations.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

SLUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [<ontinued)

Forward Forign Currenéy Exchan ge Controcts [continied]

Thase imtrumants imeclve marker fsk, credit sk, o both kinds of risks, in excess of the amount reccgrieed in the
Seaternant of Assets and Uabilides. Aisks arfse from the possible inability of counterparties to mest the teems of ther
conracs and from movernent in aurrency and ssourities values and interest rates I addition to the Jass level hedging,
e Fund had realized gain of LGB0 13,730 on 15 forward foregn ourrency exchange contracts during the year with an
verage noticna of LBD B0, 519 and an fver age term tarmaturity of 10 daye, The Fund hid net resiized gain of USD 255,024
on 46 lonward Toreign cumrency exchange contracts held af tha 177 Hedged Olass level during the year with an averags
nationd of LIED 3,450,948 and an sverage term to matusity of 27 days.

Cemh and Foreign Currency
Carsh onad for eign currency comprises all curangy hald with Brown Brothers Harriman B Co,, and cwernight and other shor
term placemants with other Anancal instnedons,

INVESTMENT IN THE UNDERLYING FUND

The Fund shall primarity imsest In shares of LG Bwe Chip Eguity Fund [the “Undaerying Fund®), a sub-fund of 7, Rowe Price
Furds SICAY, o socided dirvestissernsnt b capital varfable (“SICAN™) astabiished under the lovws of Lusernibourg, The SICAY
qualifies a5 an Undertaling for Collective imsestment In Transferable Securitles ("UQTS") under Part 1 of the Lusembourg
lowy of Deceanmber 17, 2010 on undertaidngs for colfective investment {the "2000 Low™) and is registered on the official bist of
ool ec e invesment undertaldngs malntained by the Commission de Sunvelllanos du Sectewr Rnander |“C55F7),

The chjecthne of the Underdying Fund is 1o Increase the vafue of it shares, over the lorg term through growth i the value
of its investments, by imvesting malnly in a diversified portiolio of stodos of large and medium szed “blue chip® companles
b ch Liniced States,

spefically, the Linderhying Fund imvests af leass two-thirds of toral assers in squity and equityrelatsd secuniies of
companies that are efther incorporated in the United Stabes of America o conduct most of thelr buginess there, that have
& markar capitalisation egqual 1o o greater than the companies in the Rusedl Mid-cap index or SBP Mid-cap 400 Index, and
that have @ |eading market position, seasoned management and strong financial fundamentals, Types of securities mary
Enelude cornrmon stocks, prefenred stocks, warrants, Armesican Depondtory Recsipts (“ADRS), European Depository Receipts
{“EDRs") and Globad Depositony Recelpts (“G0Rs").

The Underlying Fund does not invest more than ene-third of s asse s in debt and rroney maroet securldes.
The Undarlying Fund may wee derivatives Tor hedging and afficient portfalio managemant.

Tha Underlying Fund's fnandal statermsants are prepaned under generally acospted accounting principies in Leemboung
anvd the acoounting polides of the Underdying Funds are substantially consistent with thase of the Fund, Units of the
Underhying Fund may be redeermed cn sach Business Day,

URITS

The rey assets of the Fund are diviaed into JPY Hadged Qs Unfts and LISD Oass Linits, The Units are dencrrinated in
lepacreds Yoo and United States Doller, IPY Jass Units snd USD Oass Units are svalable to an oligible imwestor whea is any
Person, conporation o entty wivch i not ] & “US bwestors™ (o defined below]; (7] & person o eatity resident or
dermidled in the Cayrman ldands [exduding any cbject of a dhartable trust of powsr o &0 eaempted o ron-resident
Caryrnans [olanads cornpany; (i) unable to subscriba for or held Unis witheut Welating applicable laws; and (i) & custedian,
normines, or trustes for any parson, corparat on o entity described in [ tofii]) sbovs, o mach other parsons, conpor ations
o eniities as deterrinad from Brme to tme by the Manager, with the approval of the Trustes,

Tha Marager ray detenmine to s one or mone dasess of Units of the Fund witheu t price notice 1o o writien consent of
the Uinitholdars,

Al &f the net assers attributable 0o P Hedged Class Linits and USD Oass Urits are hedd by one Unitholder,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

UNITS |centivn ad)

Y Hedged T S0 Chams Totsl Fund
Balence st Decembar 31, 2018 EOr 1GBTi0Ed  UD B0S51,93% IS0 EE 403007
Subpnphar durrg e year 1,045,960 16,835, 194 17.8aL 154
Hedemptions duringthe year (7.T15.443) (ALERT 168} [$L. 202607}
et nCrease i nat auset s resulting from operations AELT ST llglm 15,747,076
et Asats @t Decembor 31 2019 ASD IRTHAEET MO MG00R0TE WD 48010645
o ber ol Ly i | o 08 Disoen e 31, JOLE 593,358 5,54, G0 8 TITI58
Lnitg pued dunng the year PR LT3 L5140
Urits redesmed during the yeer [ 78, 28 LI.UES}I] [4 181
Humber of Units in iseue ot Decembber 31 30189 FFENFE A.10% 300 ENFFERF
Het Agmt Vilue per Linit ot Decembee 51, 20180 D 10y ush 1068
Fubscriptions for Units

LEE Dass Linits wad subscribed for by Eligible Irvestors duing the Initil Offer Periad &t the inftidl purchase price of LSD
10000 e Liew, JPY Herdged Clarss Uics was subscribed for by Eligible Investors curing the Iniial Offer Pericd ot the irfial
purchase price of JFY 10,000 per Uniz, The inital Oifer Parfod commencad on une 18, 2008 and ended on June 27, 2018 In
addition to the subseription price, the spplicant shall pay & sdes charge cofeulabed Bt up to 396 jexduding ary ta
applicable) of the purchase price, b the Distribucor,

During the Inidial Offer Pericd, the menimum subscription for LED Chass Lirits per subseriber woas 10 Urdts or more, and in
mrultipies of 1 Uinit therealter, During the it Offer Perfod, the minimum initfal subsaription for IPY Hedged Olass Units
par subgoriber was 1 Unit or mone, and fn multiples of 1 Linits thareafter,

O ard after cha Iniddl Closing Doy, the mvnimum subscription for USD Class Linits. per Uinichaider [5 either 10 Units or
more, and in rdtipbes of 0001 Urits thareafter or IUSD 100, and in muftiples of LSO 001 thereafter, On and after the
Iritiel Jesing Dy, the minimum subseription for JPY Hedged Oass Urits per Ursthelder is either 1 Unit or more, and in
orniltipbes of 000 Uinits ther saltar or JFY 10,000 and in multiphes of JPY 1 theresfter,

The Marager may waive or change the minimem nital and additional subscription amounts st lorth aboe in its wole
dincreion from tme o e,

Linit Redemptions

The Furd recogrizes redemptions in accordance with the suthoritalive guidance on distinguishing liabilities Borm aquity.
Radernptions, whather expressed 5 Uinited States Doller, lapanass Yen of Units, are recogniped as lfabSities when asch of
the lapaness Yen and United States Dollar Undt amounts requested in the redemption notice becomes fined, which
garmcaly My ootur sither a1 the time of the racsipt of the actios, o o the (et day of & fiscal year, dapeanding on the
nature of the reguest. As a result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but based upon year end net assets are
reflected a8 redernptions payable at Decanber 31, 2014, There were UBD 1,663,420 and IPY nil of redernptions payable as
at Dacarnbar 31, 2018 indudad as Papatila for Units radesrmed in the Satemant of Assabs and Lsbilities

Repurchese of Units
Umitd iy b repur chised at the cpion of Linitholders on s Repanr dhases Dy,

Uinithalders wishing to have Units repunchased must send 8 completed Repurchase Notice o the Digributor 30 & tabe
racaved by the Distributer re later than 3:00 g, (Tokye trme) on the rslevent Rapurchases Dy, The Distibu o wilf send
the completed Repurthase Notices to the Sub-Adminirator by no later than 6:00 pom. {Tokyo tims) on the relevant
Reparchine Day or by such other trme aa the Sub-Admirisrator may in any par fouar carse determine,

I the relasant Repurchase MNotios is net recsived by the Sub-Adminterator by the relevant tims, the Repurchase Motics will
bz held over unitil the neat Repurchade Day and Urits will then be redeemed ot the relevant repurdhase price applicible on
that Repurchase Day, in the avent sither the day after the relavant Dealing Day of the day fafing two dove alter the
relevant Dealing Dy is & day on which banks o stock ewchanges in Japan are not open for normal business, oy
Repurchase Motice recsivad on such Deding Day, shall not be sccepted snd instesd, will be sccepted on the nest Dealing
(0]

& Repurchase Notice, onoe given, isinmevocable.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

UMITS [centimuad])

Compudsory Redemption

in the svant that tha Trustes or the Manager shall datarmine that sy Urits of sny class of @ Fund are being hald by or for
the banefit of 8 person who fsnot an Bigbie Investor for sudh Fund o that such bolding would couse the Trust o the Rund
b bt required to register, be subjact to ta or viclate the lows of any jurisdicfion, or if the Trustee or the Manager has
redion to doubt the lagitrracy of the sourca of mories used to fmd the subseription or purchass of such Units, o for
whatever rezon {which may not be disdosed by the Trustes or the Mansger to Unitholders) that the Trustes or the
Mangger conaiders appropriate ot its sbeclute disoration having regecd to the inter=its of the Unithalders of the refeavar
Oags or the Unitholders of the Fund a5 a whols, then the Manager, after consuitation with the Trustes, may direct the
helder therecf to sell {subjact to the provisions desaibed below in the section haaded "Transfer of Units") such Unis
within 10 days and provide to the Trustes and the Manager evidence of such sale, falling which the Manager may redeemn
sch Units.

Termination of the Fund
Upon termination, the Manager will reallze oll the assets of the Fund, and after paying cu't or retaining adequate provison
for &l lisbilities proparly payable and retaining provision feor tha comes af tha tarmingtion, the Trestee shall dstribute the
procseds of that realization to the Unithoders proporti onately to thelr respactive interests in the Fund as of the date of
termination of the Fund.

Eirtrib utiony to Unitholders

The Manager may, from tme to time, in its sole dsgretion, dedare dstributions from May 2009, Digtribution will be
dedared annualy on each Cistribution Record Onbe and caloudlated on each Ex-Cistribution Date. Distribution Feriod is a
period commendng from the calenvdar dary Following the preceding Oistribution Aecord Dabe and ending on and induding
tine Distribution Record Date, The distributions will be paid on the relevant Cistribution Payment Date, prowided that such
amount [iF ary) declared with nespect o the refevant Ciass of Unfs in respect of the applicable Distribution Pericd shall
only be paid cut of the Fund's net income, realized anvd unrealized capital gains and any distributable funds of the Fund
attributable to such Jass of Units as determinad by the Managaer,

The dedaration of digributions to Unitholders reduces the Jass Level Mer Assst Valus per Uit without any comesponding
thange in the rumber of OQass Lessd Units per Uinithalder, This results in o Uinithalder's everall indestrnent in the Fund
being reduced, in addicion, avy dsributions during a perod which are in ex0ess of the Fund’s nat Increase In net Bsset
remilting from operations resdlts in aporton of the distribytion being remirm of capital

The amount of distributions, i amy, will be detenmined by the Manager in its sole dscretion, and no representation o
guarantes is mads thar o distribution wil be made in respact of asdh or any Distribution Perled,

Capitadization

Thar Mer Asset Value per Unit 5 caloudated for each Dealing Dary [sach Valuation Day, o such other day or days as the
Nanager ridny fream tirne bo tirme deterrrines in respact of tha Fund), by dividing the differancs in wahie betwsen the Fund's
asents and |[abilites (nduding accrusd fees and experees of the Fund) bry the number of Uinics cutstanding.

The Trust Deed ipulanes that the pumber of Linits 10 be {ssusd in the Fund shall be wrlimited a5 the Manager shall
detanrine and shall bewithout par valus,

DERFVATIVE AINANCIAL IMSTRUMENTS

Aooounting Statdard Codi fication (A5 81 5-10-50 reguines disd osures sbout daivative instruments and hadging activties
Iermguires that the Fund disclone: a) how and why Bn entity uses derivative instruments, b) how derivative irmirumeants and
related hadged iterns are sccounted for and <) how derivative instrurnents and relatied hadged items affect & entity's
finencial position, finsndal parformancs and cadh flows,

The Fund tamacts forward derfvative instruments primarily for hedging purposes with each instrument's primarny risk
wxposre baing foreign euchange rige The forward {oreign curency exchange contracts held by the Fund do not qualify &
hedges for acoounting purposes under the requirements of ASC BLS The far value of these derivative Ingtruments Is
included in the Statement of Assets and Labilides with chenges in fair value reflected o realized g;a'nﬂlum:a or net
changein unreal ized appreciation/{depreciation) on derivativeswithin the Statement of Operations [hote 1),

The Fund may enter into an international Swaps and Derivative Association, Inc. Master Agreement (“50A Master

Bgreement”) with its counterparties in order b0 mitigate counterparty rise The IS0A Mage Agresment is typicaly
negotiaed by the Fund and its counterparties, containing the bi-lateral terms and conditions for all subsequent derbrative
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

DERFVATIVE FINANCLAL INSTRUMENTS | sontinued)

traractions, The S04 Master Agraernent albows for the netting of all arounts cwed 1o or due from countepanty inte a
sirgle net paymant il & credit event o defaulit should ooour,

Tha Furd has slacted 1o not offser Tair value receivables snd payables for derivative contraces on the face of the Statement
of Apsets and Lisbilities,

At Dacarmber 31, 2019 the Fusd had sntered into the following derivative assets by counterparty net of amounts avalable
for off st under & Marster Metting Agrearrant (TMMNA") and net of ary collasera recaived by the Fund:

Darkestive Sdiets Dervath M h Cuik Mgt Arnear ol
Counterparty Sakbjoct toa WA Svailable for Offiet Colll | Becaboad Coll | Bpcahad Derhative favets”
=i FE (] 224380 £F, 3] LD =LED =D =
Totsl us 226U gassjuso usp —us -

At December 31, 2019 the Fund had antered into the following dervative llabilites by counterparty net of amounts
oviiable for offset under & MNA and net of ary oollatersl pledged by the Fund:

Darkative Doerhvatives Hon<ah Caih Mat fmonnt of
Coum erpasty Lighilinien Semilable fer Offset Collvtersl Pledged Collvteral Fladged Derkentive
Subject to s MAA Liakilities"
e Fe LD 36, MaLED £2, 43JLISD =0 = s 34,866
Toral Usm___ se7oe [FELEIED ~Uso BT

b b etk ety th i el i) riobv i o prysible o i COUSTINEATY i T et of deflt

At Dcernbar 31, 2009 the Fund had antered into the following dervatives

A rut O arvatioas Lighliny Darhvativer

Dbt S ement Tatam e

Mt Scceuntad For ar of B aks anel of fuzetd and

fins-tram anks Liabilitias Losation Falr Valum Ligblile: Location Fair alus

Farward fansign curmency  Unnealises spoees sbaon W aalznd degrecistion

wxchange conbracty on forerand fonsign on Fprward foragn

{Currency A DTGy suchangs S0 4,243 curency sachange (1o 35, T
I £O0F LT

Ther effect of denvaire instruments on the Statement of Operations for the year ende d December 31, 3019:

Dierbpkbogr Bt Lecation of Egalizad Changm in Urrgalied
Aooourted Gl or Lo Galm or {Loaa) B preci st on or
ler 11 Hediging o Dertvatived an Derhvatived {Depresviian) an
lIngbrum snki Barbrathm:

Hher ramtiz wd hyiis on Fsrwiaed fonegn
Forward Farsign camency  cumancy snchenge conlracts
enchange (oniracti charspe on urrsl pid appresation on Toreerd
{Cirreney g foreign cwrancy eechange contracts L A IM  WBD (&7, 4380
MANAGEMENT FEES

The Manager is entitled to receive out of the awets of the Fund a management fee of a totad of up to AL28% per annum
{CLO35 per anwam in respect of tha fee for the Manager and 0L25% per ancum for the portion of the MNet Asset Valus up to
LD 250 million, 0.248% per annum for the porBion of the MNet Asset Values over USD 250 million up to LED 300 million and
22% par snrum for the portion of the Ner At Valus over LED 500 mion in respact of fes for the Imvessmant
Manager] of the het Asset Walue acorued on, and ol adated as at, sach Valuation Day and payabée monthly in amears. In
sddition, the Manager is also antfdad ta ba reimbursad cut of tha sssets of tha Fund for sny apanstincurad byt in tha
proper performance of its powers and duties as permithed under the Master Trust Deed.,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

MAN 8 GEMENT FEES [comtinuad)

Curing the year ended Decernber 31, 2019, the Manager samed fess of LED 167458, of which LGD 11,891 is sl
cutstanding as of Decernber 31, 2014,

Tha Masnager will pay the fees of the Impstment Manager cutof lts fees, The Irvestrent Manager will be responsible for
paying the fees of any of its dalegetes or ather parties sppainted by the Impetrent Manager to perform its functions in
respect of the Fund; provided, however, the Investrment Manager miy charge a ransaction Tes on the subscripdons and
redempticns of shares of the Uinderhing Fund,

CUSTODIAN AMND SUB-ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fund has & custedy and acctuwnting agreament with Brown Brothers Harrimen & Go, [the “Custedian”™ and “Sub-
Administrator”) for which the Custodian recawes a fee calculated ond paid monthly based on total assets and ransaction
vl

Tha dustodien and Sub-Administrator is entited to receivs out of the asssts of the Fund an sdministration fee [induding
transfer agent fee) on the Net Asset Value aoowed on, and calcufated as at, each Valustion Dy at the foll owing annival
rata:

= 00T ¥up to [and incheding] LISD 250 millon;

- LSRR L to [and incleding] LISDS00 milion;

- L0 cvrer IS0 S50 million.

Suich adminfstration fee Is payable monthly In orrears, and subject to the minimem ammeal fee of USD 60,000, The Sub-
Adriristrater (¢ also antitlad to racaiva out of the ety of the Fund fees for curency admirfstration and amecution
serwices ot the rate of 0,053 par annum of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Unit Class, subject to the minemom anmual
feer of UBD 50,000, In addiion, the Custodian and Sub-Adminisirator s dlso entded to receive custornany safekeseping fees
and rarsaction changes, Al cut-cf:pocket expenses of the Custodian and Scb-Administrator shadl dso be borne by the
Furrd. During the yeer ended Decambar 31, 2045, the Custodian aamed Fees of UED 119,053, of which LED 53,173 fs =il
outstanding as of Decernbaer 31, 2014,

TRUSTEE FEES AND ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Trustes isentitted to recsive cut of the assets of the Fund a combined fise a2 the rate of 0,01 5% per annum of the Net
Asat Value accrped on, and calodated a5 at, each Valustion Doy and payable guarterly in arears, subject to a minimum
el fes of USD 15,000, During the year anded Decernber 31, 2019, the Trustes earned fees of LSD 12,998, of which LED
3,743 [5 sl outstanding as of December 31, 2015,

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

Tha Agent Comparry Is entided to receive cut of the assets of the Fund a fee at the rate of 0.03% per annum of the Net
Mzmet Value acoued on, and calculated as at, exch Vauation Doy and payable quarterdy in arrears. During the year ended
Diecernbeer 31, 2039, the Agent earmed fees of UISD 17,943, of which USD 3,773 b stll cutstanding 25 of December 31, 2014,

DSTRIBUTIORS FEES"

Tha Ciswributor is entitad to recsive out of the assers of the Fund & fee st the rate of 0655 pér armum of the Met Asset
Vaue acousd on, and caloudated o5 af, sach Vauation Dey and payable quarterdy in orrears. During the year ended
Cicernbar 31, 20049, the Distributors earned fees of USD 388 143, of which UED B 726 is sl cutstanding e of Decermber
al, 2009,

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The conts and expenses in connection with the establishment of the Fund and the offering of the Units, together with the
establishmiant of the Trwst, including, the costs &d expenses of preparing and printing any prospeches o explanatocy
brochures required, are estimated to amount to approdmately USD 140,000, Such costs and expenses will be amortised
within the first five {5) finandal years of the Fund unless the Trustes decides that some other method shall be applied. The
Adrirestrabor recelves LISD 1 500 per annuem for FATCA f CRS compliance sendees

The Underlying Fund Fsendied to recaive out of the assets of the Underhyfng Fund, a fee at the rate of 0,655 per annum of
the Mot Aigsat Ve of the Undarhying Fund.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Tha Furd's sctivities sapose it 1o avardery of fnancal risks: madkat risk fincluding price risk, interest rate risk, and aurrency
gk, cradiorisk and llgudity risk,

Felarkes Rizk
AU ipsesrrients present & rigk of loss of capinal, The investrent Manager moderates this risk theeugh s careful selection of
securities and cther financial instruments,

Tha Furid”s irvestrisnt mareg aent process i5 desaribed in Noe 1, The primasy determinant of the Fund’s ability 1o meset
its ohjective of mid to long verm capitd apprecistion while sarming income is dependent on the perfarmance of the
Empstmant in the Undarlying Fund,

Tha walues of the Fund's impestments are aflected by 8 rumbeer of factors, including but not Emived to, changes in thewider
econcrmy, finandal md currency markets, forsign currency exchange rates snd interest rate movements, The Fund anters
Enee forward contracts which 1o varying degrees repretent & markel risk in excas of e armount reflectsd on the Fund's
Staterment of Assets and Uabilides. The notional amount of the contract represenis the extent of the Fund's partidpadonin
these financial insrumenty, Markst risks asscdated with sech coniracts ariss dus 1o the possible rrowmen s in foreign
CurTenoy echang s rates underhing Seese Instruments,

DOither market and credit riges indude the possibiny that thers may be an Tiguid market for the contracts, that the change
i thea vl of the contract may not directly correlate with dhanges in the value of the underlying currentiss o that the
counterparty 1o o forward conmrast defaults on it obiigation to parform under the terms of the contract, The Fund's
exponune bo oss due 1o counterpasy non-pedlonmance on open futures, lonwands, swip and cptions conmracts islimited o
the unrealiped appeecinbion inherent in such financisl Enstrurnants which are recognized in the Staternent of Assets and
Liatsili s,

Credit Risk

Cradit risgk represants: the potentia loss that the Fund would incur iF the counter parties, fallad to perform pursuant to the
terms of thelr chligations to the Fund, For exchange-traded contracts, the excharge acts a5 the counterparty to specific
trarsactions and, therefore, besrs the risk of delivery to and from counterparties of specific posiions The Fund's
management doss not consder thak credlt risk refated bo open derivartive contracts will have matedal adverse effect on the
finamcial conditicn of the Fund.

Mthough the Manager monitors the Custodian and befieves it to bean appropriate aestodian, there [ no guarantes that
this or ey cumodian that the Fund may use from dme totm e, will nog becoma insobeent, which could lead 1o losses for
e Fumd.

‘While both the LS, Bankruptey Code and the Securithes Investor Protection Act of 1570 seek to probect customer property
i the evant of a fallure, insclvency or liguldat on of an instiauton, there is nocortainty that, in the event of a failure of an
Institution that has custody of Fund sssets, the Fund would not incur losses due to Its assets being unavalable for aperiod
of drmee, ultimately bess than full recorery of fts assaty, o both, Because all of the Fund's cash is in custody with & single
Institution, such logses could be sgnificant and could materaly impar the abllity of the Furd to achieve its investment
ocbjactve The Fund is b ject to credt risk o the axtent thar this institution may be unabde to TRl ios chigations bo rapay
amounts owed,

Liguieliny Risk
Irmastors should be aware that the value of Units righs fall 8 well as rise, Impesirnantin the Fund invobees o degrea of risk;
therve can be no assurance that the Fund's imvestrment objective will be achiaed,

Tha Fund is exposed to dally repurchase of fts Lin'ts but manag ement belleves that the Fund has sufficient rescurces o
et the present and foresesabls needs of iTs business cperations Bnd, if necessery, the liquidity to fund repurchases and
achieve a market position appropristely reflecing & smaller capital base. This posidon & monftored contfnualty by
FriBRSArTIANE Bo andare that the Fund had the abdEny bo mest i obligations,

The Trustes, after commitstion with the Menager, may suspend the issmnce and repurchass of units and payments in
respat of uch crarsactions in any craumetancess whare the taladation of the Underlying Fund's Mel Asset Valus per unit
is sugpended. The Trustees will inform unitholders of such a suspendon as soon as practicable afver It is imposed o Efoed.,
Subseripton applications and repurchase notiees cannal be withdrawn during such suspension and will be processed for
the next Dealing date. All Unitholders of the Fund will be promptly notifed in writing of any such suspension and will be
promptly notifed upon terrrination of such suspension,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

FIMANCIAL RISE PANAGEMENT [continued)

Corrancy Risk

The Lt price of U0 Class Linits {5 deterrined in USD, and the Undt peice of JPY Hedged Qass Units & detarmined in
leanese Yer while the Fund is dencrminated in LS dellars, The Fund, however, may e aportion, or all of, its asetsin
cther currendias, oF in instruments dencmenated in none lnpaness Yan of non-US Dollor curmencies, the prives of which will
b determined with reference 1o auich non-kpaness Yen or nen US Dollar currancied. The valie of the Fund's sssats wil
fNuchiate with lapanese Yen exchange rates as well a5 the price changes of {ts irnsestrnents im the various local markets and
turrenties

The Fund alss may wilize cptions and forward contrects to hadge against asrency fluctuations, but there can be no
Besurance that such hedging transec fons wil be elfective, and such technigues entall costs and additonal risks,

Th insestrnent manager rmonitors the Fund's currancy expomuns on a dally basis,
BORFOAMWAN G5

The Manager andfor its dalegates riay bormow mores for the acoount of the Fund prosfded that ic will not borrow mon sy
if, % & resut of such borroning, the aggragate amount of cutstanding bormowirgs effected on bathall of the Fund would,
Ervemadintaly following such borrowing, sceed 108 of the valus of its et sdeets, sawe that this it may be sxteaded
ternparanity for @ peniod not excesding 13 months in special sinusations inchuding, without Smitation, amerger of the Fund
with ancther series trust, imeestment fund or other type of coflective invesrment schame,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the nerrnal course of business, the Trustes on behall of the Fund may anter into contracts that contain a varisty of
representations and warrantes and which prodde general indemnifications. The generdl indemeifcations apply not enly
o the bt such represmtations and wamranties are untrue but dso may cower third parties such o the Fund's
Adriresrater, Auditor of Fvesiment Manager for claims related 1o the senvoes parformed for tha Fund, The Trostes's
maKmum exposuns under any sudh arrangements iz unknown, 88 Epomie Only arites to the extent future claims that
e et it oocurTed are rade Bgainst the Trustes, However, bated on axperience, the Trustes sepects the risk of less to
b ramobe,

HIBSECUENT EVENTS

Manazament parformed & whsequent svents raiey up 1o June 17, 2020 which is the data tha Bnamcial stataments we's
avalable tobe fsswad,

Effactive lanuary 1, 2020 through June 17, 2030, there were subsoriptions of LED 2,477,272 and there were redemptions
of LISEH5,342, 557 in respect of JIFY Hadged (s Units. Thare were distibutions.of nil in respect of IPY Hedged Cass Uit

Effactive Jarnaey 1, 2020 threugh June 17, 3020, there wers subsoiptions of LSD 22,756,542 and there were redamptions
of LSl 19,827, 287 in respect of USD Jass Units, There were distributionsof nil in respect of L&D Class Units,

CONID-18

On Mardh 11, 2020 the Warld Hedth Organimtion dedared the coronavirus disesse 2019 [TCOVID -157) a panderric,
Uncartia by £arnairm arcursd (i) thelength of the disruption, and i) the impact of tha COVID:19 onglobal markets,
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2018 12 31

TRP
2018 12 31
73,448,000 65,437,569 6,993,313
635,454 67,911
474,833 50,745
59,651 6,375
66,607,507 7,118,344
12,847 1,373
25,286 2,702
16,253 1,737
112,832 12,058
3,746 400
5,208 557
11,860 1,267
16,453 1,758
204,485 21,853
66,403,022 7,096,491
74,670,192 7,980,003
(385,532) (41,202)
(334,180) (35,714)
(7.547,458) (806,597)
66,403,022 7,096,491
1,739,101,517
193,351 8,995
50,551,939
5,544,008 9.12 975
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2018 12 31

10,812 1,155
10,812 1,155
185,209 19,793
79,782 8,526
48,486 5,182
14,934 1,596
8,548 914
7,643 817
5,095 545

435 46
46,212 4,939
396,344 42,357
(385,532) (41,202)
(334,180) (35,714)
(334,180) (35,714)
(8,010,431) (856,075)
462,973 49,478
(7,547,458) (806,597)
(7.881,638) (842,311)
(8,267,170) (883,512)
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(385,532) (41,202)

(334,180) (35,714)
(7,547,458) (806,597)
(8,267,170) (883,512)
18,770,789 2,006,034
57,977,750 6,196,082
(1,078,620) (115,272)

(999,727) (106,841)
74,670,192 7,980,003
66,403,022 7,096,491
66,403,022 7,096,491
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18,770,789 57,977,750 76,748,539

(1,078,620) (999,727)  (2,078,347)

(1,841,086) (6,426,084)  (8,267,170)
2018 12 31 15,851,083 50,551,939 66,403,022

205,219 5,640,700 5,845,919

(11,868) (96,692) (108, 560)
2018 12 31 193,351 5,544,008 5,737,359
2018 12 31 81.98 9.12

10.00
10,000
2018 18 2018 27
10
10
0.001 100 0.01
0.001 10,000
2018 12 31

2018 12 31
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MNA
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 1,947 (1,857) 90
Citi PB 472,886 (10,003) 462,883
474,833 (11,860) 462,973
2018 12 31 MNA
MNA
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 1,857 (1,857)
Citi PB 10,003 (10,003)
11,860 (11,860)
@
2018 12 31
474,833 11,860
2018 12 31
(331,754) 462,973
0.28
0.03 2.5 0.25 2.5
0.24 0.22
2018 12 31 79,782 2018 12 31 16,253
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27,864,443

92/188

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)

10

Ooooooooooooooooooad

12

241,368

6,719,937



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

December 31, 2018

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise Indicated)

Azt
investmenis bn securites, af value [cost of USD 73,448 060503 [154) BE 437 855
Cash 635454
Urwesaliie=d aggpreciation cn forwand forsgn turrendy eochange conwras 474,853
Prepebd addets 50,551
Todal asssts b6 60T 07
Ll e
Arorued professional foes 12847
Arcnued custodan snd sub-adeninkstraioes fees 25285
Archued managemnt fees 16,253
Accrued distribunars fees 112,832
Arcrued Tapster fees 3,745
Arcrued agent company's fees £ 108
Uriralized depreclation on forward forsipn ourrency sechonge contracts 115360
Crher eapenes 16,453
Tozal lakdities 04,455
Net Assets Artributable to Unitholdars uso 6,403,082
Analbysis of Net Asseta:
Paid in capial WD TAETO 192
Acournulted distibutions in soess of fet inestment income [385,532)
Accurrulated net realized bsses on imestreents and forelgn cumency transactians and forward

foredgn cumency exchange contracts [334,183)
Het unrealized depreclation on irvestesnts and forsign cumency transacsions and forsard Toreign

currency exchange tondracts j'u".!l'u".-l’!ﬁ!
Nt Assets Antributable to Unitholders uso ﬁﬂaﬂﬂ
Nt fisset Valus per Unit
{1PY Hedged Class IPY 1,735, 101,51 7 + 153,351 Unli s cutstanding) IFY 5,995

(LS Class UISD 50, 551 800 & § 544,008 Units cutstanding)

USD 0,12

The accompanying notes are an integral par of these financial statements,
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For the peried from June 28, 2018 ({Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2018

{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Inwestment ncome:
Interes
Tetal Ivvestment Income

Expenses:
DHstribanor's fees
Management fees
Custedion and wib-sdmindstratoes fess
Peodessional fees
Agem coregony's fees
Trustes fees
Transfer agent fers
Reghstration foes
CTher S nies

Total Expenass

Nt Irvestmant Losses

Realiped mnd Uinrealiced Gring/{Losses);
Poealized gains Thass e}
Forelgn currency tramsactions and forward forelgn currency exchange contracts
Het realized losses
Change Inunrealized appreclation[depreclation)
Investments in securities
Foreign currency trsmsactions and forward foregn currency exchange toniracts
Het change in anrealized deprecistion
Het realized and unrealized losses

Nt decrease in net assts madting from operations

334,150
334,183}
{8.010,431)

452,973
{7.547.458)

17581638}

L0 llﬁ?.lmi

The accompanying notes are an integral par of these financial statements,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the peried from June 28, 2018 ({Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2018
{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Ineraase [Decresia] in Met Assets fram!

‘Oprmtions:
Het Ivesiment losses [154] (288,532}
Mt reallzed lossrs (334,180
Het change bn unresliced deprediation [7 547 4583
(Net decrimams in net assets resulting trom opsratians S.Zb'-".l?ﬂ
Capital Transactioms:
Lhrins st
Y Hedged Class (205, 219 Unkts) 18,770, TG
LS Cllars 8,540, 700 Undtsh Lo 1]
Uris redesmed
Y Hedged Class {11865 Units) (L0620
LASDr Cllanis | 96,6592 Unins) DL T2T)
M=t Indrease nnet aseets ieling from capinall tranesctions TAEHTE IS
Todal Inereass in Mt Assets 66,403,023
Nt Aswnis:
Beginning of pedad -
End af pericd LED  BieA0,022

The accompanying notes are an integral par of these financial statements,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period from June 28, 2018 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2018

ORGANIZATION

TRP LS Core Grawth Equity Fund ithe “Fund™} is o series trust of the Nikko AM Offshore Funds, an open-ended unit trust
established by a supplemental trust deed dated May 14, 2018 {the “Supplemental Trust Deed”), under the laws of the
Cayman Idands. Nikko AM Offshore Funds was established by 3 master wrust deed dated October 15, 2012 {the “Maszer
Trust Deed™), under the laws of the Cayman slands and is licensed with the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority parsuani
to section 4{ 1}{al of the Muiual Funds Law {2009 Revsion). The Fund commenced operations on June 28, 2018,

The Fund's assets are managed on a day 1o day basis by Nikko AM Glohal Cayman Umdted {the “Manager”). The Manager
delegates investment management dotics o Mikke Asse? Management Coo, Lid, (the "nvestment Manager"h The
Inwestrent Manager may delegate responsibility for the management of the iwestment and re-investment of certain pars
of thie Fund®s ivvestment portfolio to other investment managers, The administration of the Fund is delegated to Brown
Brothers Harriman & Co. (the “Custodian™ and “Sub-Administrator), a limited partnership organized under the laws of the
State of Mew York,

The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve growth in the value of units over the long term by Investing into a fund,
which irmvests mainly in a diversified portfolio of stodks of large and medium sized “blue chip” companées in the United
Slates

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, CIBC Bank and Trust Company {Cayman]
Lirmitesd {the “Trustee” and the “Administrater”) is named as Trustee of the Fund

The Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF Morgan Stanley PB Securities Co., Lid to act as Agent Company (the “Agent
Company”) and to act as Distributor {the “ Mstributer™} of Units in lapan.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Furd is an investrent Company that follews the sccounting and reperting guidance in FASE Accounting Standards
Codification 546,

Use af Estimates

Thir acccmpanying financial statements have been prepared in accordanoe with acccunting principles generally accepted in
the United $tates of America {"LL5. GAAPT). The preparation of financial statements in accerdance with LS, GAAPR requires
thi Fund'’s management 1o make estimates and assomprions that affec the reported amounts of assers and Rabilises and
disdosmes of contingent assets and Wabilities at the date of the financial staterments and the reported amounts of
revisnues and espenses during the reperting period. Actual results, inchuding the wlimate amount realized upon the sale of
fair valued investments, could differ from those estimates and such differences may be significant.

Basis of Accounting

Securty and contractual transactions are recerded on a tradefcontract-date basis, Interest income B recorded onoan
effective yield basis, net of any applicable withholding tax Interest expense and cther experses are recorded on an accrual
basis, Realzed gains and lesses frem sequrity transactions are computed on the basis of the average cest of the securities
wild or covered. Changes in the valuation of investrments are recorded in the Smatement of Operations as unrealized
appreciation or depreciation.

Valuation of Investments

Inwestments in other investment companles {“hedge funds®) are valued on the basis of the Net Asset Value {“NAVY) per
share a6 reperted by the administrators of these entities a7 the measurerment date based upon policies. and procedunes
adopted by the Fund. In cases where the Fund could in the normal course of business redeem its underhying investment,
sch investiments are generally valeed a1 the ret asses valuations provided by the administrazors of those entities,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from June 28, 2018 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2018

SUMMARY OF SEGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIOIES (continued)

Valuetion of Investments feantinued)

In cases where the Fund is unable to redeem its underlying investment, such investments in portolio funds are also valued
at the net asset valuations provided by the admindstraters of these entities, prosvided that the underlyving pertfolio funds
havee calewdated thedr ne? adset valuations in accordance with accounting meassrement guidance which is applicable o
inEsTIMEnt companies e g, mestments within such undedying investment compandes have been fair valued in sccordange
with applicable U5 GAAPR, unless the Inestment Manager determines that such a valuation weould net be the mest
appropriate ndicator of falr value, inwhich case the investment would be fair valeed by the Ineestment Manager.

In aczordance with the autheritative guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures under LS. GAAP, the Fund
disdoses the fadr value of its imvestrments ina hierarchy that priodtizes the ingans to valuation tedhnigues used 1o measure
the fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest prierity te valuations based upen wnad|usted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest prierity to valuations based upon unobservable
inputs that are gignificant te the valuation (Level 3 measurements), The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value
hierardhy as follows:

e Ll 1 — Inputs that reflect unad]usted quoted prices in active markets Tor identical imvestments that the Fund
has the ability to access at the measurement date;

= Level 2 - Inputs ether than quoted prices that are significant and chservable for the asset or liabdity either
dir ectly or indirectly, including inputs in markes that are not considered to be active;

*  Level 3 - npuss that are significant and unchservable.

Inpeits are used in apphing the various valuatien techniques and breadly refer to the assumptions that market participants
use to make valuation decisions, inchuding assumpticns about risk. Inputs may Include price information, specific and broad
creedit data, Hguidity statistics, and other facters. A financial instrument’s bevel within the fair value hieraschy is baged upon
the lowest level of any inpur that & signéficant o the fair value measurement. However, the detesmination of what
constitutes “chiervable” requires significant judgment by the investment Manager. The irvestment Manager considers
ohsercable data to e markes data which i readdly available, regularly dembuted or updated, refiable and verifiable, not
proprietary, and provided by independent scarces that are actively involved in the relevant market, The categenization of a
fimancial instrument within the hierarchy B based upon the pricing transparency of the s rurment and does Rat Recessarily
comespend to the Investment Manager's percetved risk of that Instrument.

Inwestments whose values are based on the quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within Level 1,
waotld nclude actively traded equities, certain LS. government and sovereign obligations, and certain money market
securitios. The Investrent Manager would net aduest the quated price fer sudh instruments, even in situations where the
Fund held a large position and a sabe could reasenably impact the quoted price.

Inwestrents that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on quoted marker prices,
dealer quetations or altemative pricing sources supperted by chsenable inputs are dassified within Level L Thesa includa
imvestment-grade debt securities, short-teem imestments and foraard foreign currency exchange contracts As Level 2
irvestments inchede positions that are not raded in active markets and/fer are sublect to transfer restrictions, valuations
iy b adjusted 1o reflect illiquiding and/or non-transferabilitg, which are genesally based on svailable market information.

Inwestments classified within Level 3 have sgnificant uncbservable inputs, as they would trade infrequently. Level 3
instruments would include asset-backed seowrities and collaeralized mongage obligations. As observable prices are nos
available for those securities, the Fund weuld use valuation technigues te dertve the faie value.

The inpans of methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indicatien of the risk ascociated with investing
in these securities,

In accordance with ASU 2015-07, the Funds investment in other investment companies has not been @tegorized in the
Tair value hierarchy nor in a roll forward of vestrent activity.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the peried from June 28, 2018 ({Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Valuetion of Investments (cantinued]

The following table presents the financial instraments carfied on the 5tatement of Assers and Liabilites by caption and by
level within the valuazion hierarchy as of December 31, 2018, Further classificatiors of the finandal nstnements are
presenced in the Porifolio of Investments,

Assets at Fair Valun FairValen st
Lovel 2 Lavel 2 Level3 Decomber 31, 2018
Forward Fooeign Camency
Exchange Condracts SR = ush 4748313 (i) - LED 474,813
Total 5 = [T 74 E11 [I55) = \ED 474,833
Limbsilitles art Fadr Valus Falr Valus =t
Lisvel 1 Livel 2 Level 3 Dwcember 31, 2018
[Forward Foosign Cummency
Earhange Condracts 18] = se 11550 LISy = LED 11880
Toeal LD - LISD 1LB60 L0 LI5S0 11,850
Fareign Currency Transfetion

Asgers and Eabilities held in currencies other than United States Dollae ("US0 or the "Functional Currency”) are translated
te the Functional Currency at the rate of exchange prevalling at the financial statement date. Income and expenses are
rransdated a1 the rate of exchange prevalling at the date on which the mcome of expense is incurred. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses arising on foreign ourrency transactions are incheded in the Statement of Operations in the
period inwhich they ccour,

The Fund dees net Isclate that pertion of the results of operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on
investments e the fuctuations arsing frem changes in market prices of securities held. Such fluctustions ane incliaded
with the net realized and unrealized gain or kess from i rvestments.

fncame Taxes

Under the curment laws of the Cayman [slands, there are ne incemes, withhobding, capdtal gains or other Taxes payable by
thi Fundd. In certain jurisdictions ather than the Cayman llands, forelgn takes may be withheld at source on dividends and
interest recetved by the Fund. Capital gains desived by the Fund in such [urisdiciions generally will be exempt from foreign
Income or withholding taxes at seurce. The Fund intends o conduct its affairs such that it will not be subject e income tax
in ary [urisdiction, As a result, no provition for incorme takes has been made in the Anancial statements. Unitholders may
be tawed on their proporticnate share of the Fund's tax basis income based on thelr individual circumstances,

The Fund follows the authoritative gukdance on accounting for and dischosure of uncertainty in tax positlens {Financial
Accounting Standards Board ("FASE”) - Accounting Standards Codification 740}, which requires the Manager 1o detenming
whether & tax postion of the Fund ts more likely than not to be sustained upen examination by the applicable taxing
awthority, including resclution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the positicn,
For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recogndzed in the financial statements is
reduced by the langest benefit that hac a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon wWimate settlement
with the relevant taxng authority. The Manager has determined that there is minimal or no effect on the financial
sratements being wnder this authoritative guidanse.

Farward Foreign Currency Exchonge Confrads

The Fund may enter into forward foreign currency eschange contracts to hedge against forelgn currency exchange rate
risks on all or a portion of npenUSD denominated investments or for efficent portfelic management purposes. When
entesing into a forward foreign ourrency exchange contract, the Fund agrees to receive or deliver a fived quantity of
foreign curmency for an agreed-upen price on an agreed future date. These contracts are valued daily, and the Rund's ne:
equity therein, representing unrealized oppreciation/idepreciation) on the contracts as measured by the difference
between the forvward fereign currency exchange rabes at the dates of entry into the contracts and the forward rates at the
reporting date, i included in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Realired and unrealized gains and losses are inchadied
in the Staterment of Operations.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from June 28, 2018 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2018

SUMMARY OF SEGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Farward Foreign Currency Exchonge Confrads {continued)

These indtnements irvobve marker sk, eredit risk, or both kinds of risks, in excess of the amount recognized in the
Swtement of Assets and Liabilites. Risks anse from the possible inabllity of counterpariies to meet the terms of thelr
contrets and frem movement in currendy and securities values and interest rates. in addition 1o the Class level hedging,
the Fund had realized gain of USD 1,618 on 8 ferward forelgn currency exchange contracs during the peried with an
average notienal of USD 22,253 and an average term to maturity of 11 days. The Fund had met realized loss of USD 333,372
on 18 forwand foreign ourency exchange contracts held at the JPY Hedged Class lovel during the period with an average
notional of KD B 962,652 and an average termn 1o maturity of 26 days.

Cosh and Foreign Currency
Cash and foreign currency comprises all currency held with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., and evernight and cther short
term placerments with other financial insitutions,

INVESTMENT IN THE UNDERLYING FUND

Thar Fund shall primarilty invest in shares of LS Blue Chip Equity Fund jthe *Underlying Fund”), a sub-fund of T, Rowe Price
Funds SICAV, a sedéné dimestissement & capital vaniable (“SICAV) established under the laws of Leembowrg. The SICAY
qualifies as an Undertaking for Collective Immstment in Transferable Securities ("UOTS"} under Part 1 of the lusemboung,
law of December 17, 2010 on undertakings for collective imeestment (the "2000 Law®} and is registered on the official list of
collective investrent undertiakings maintained by the Commission de Sarvedllance du Secteur Anancier [“C55F7),

Tha objectivie of the Underhdng Fund is to indrease the value of its shares, over the long term through growth in thee value
of its investments, by investing mainly in a diversified portfolio of stods of large and medium sized “blue chip” compandes
in tha: Lniced States

Specifically, the Underlying Fund invests ot least two-thirds of total assets in equity and equity-related securities of
companies that are either incorporaved in the United States of America or conduct most of thelr business there, that have
i market capitalisation equal o of greater than the companies in the Aussell Mid-cap indix or S&P Mid-cap 400 Indes, and
that have a leading market position, seasoned management and strong financial fundamentals. Types of seourities may
include comanen stecks, prefierred stocks, warrants, American Depostery Receipts ("ADAS™), Eurcpean Depository Recelpis
["EDRs"1and Global Depositery Receipts ("GIRs"L

The Unckerlying Fund dees not invest more than ene-third of its assets in debt and meney market secunities.
The Unikrlying Fund may use derivatives for hedging and efficent pertfelio management.

The Uneherlying Fund's financial statements are prepared under generally accepted accounting principles in Luxermbourg
and the accounting policies of the Underlying Funds are substantially consistent with those of the Fund, Units of the
Underlying Fund may be redeemed on each Business Day.

UNITS

The net assets of the Fund are divided into JPY Hedged Class Units and USD Class Units. The Units are denominated in
lapanese Yen and Unived S1ates Dollar. |PY Qass Units and LUSD Class Units aee available to an eligible irvestor who is any
person, corporation or entity which Is not (i} 8 *US Investors” (as defined bedow): (i} a person or entity resident or
domigibed in the Cayman ilands (excluding ary cblect of a charitable trust of power or an exmpted or noneresidens
Cayrnan |slands company): (i} unable to subsoribe for or hold Units without vielating applicable laws; and (v} a custodian,
nemines, or trustes for any persen, corporation or entity described in i} to (i} above, er such other persons, comeerations
oF entites a5 determined from time to tme by the Manager, with the approval of the Trustee.

The Manager ray determing 1o lswe one or mode dasses of Units of the Fund withowt prior rotice to oF wrillen consent of
the Unithalders.

All af the fit assets attributable to 1PY Hedged (lass Units and USD Olads Units ane held by ene Unitholder.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from June 28, 2018 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2018

UNITS {continued)

1Pt Hedged Oass SO Class Totul Fund
Balance a1 beginning of period [0 - \BD - LED -
Subsrripiions during the period 18,770, T E1.97T17%0 T TME533
e ptloms during the period {1078, 620 {0,727 (1078347
Mt dhecrease b net aseets resdting from cperatians 1 81, 065 A26, 184 R.267.17
et Apsets at December 31, 2008 ish 15851083 USD  SGESL935 LED  G6EA33000
Hureber of Undts In bsue a1 beginning of pericd - - -
Ui bsueedd thariing the peviod 05219 5,640,700 5845919
Urits redeeemed during the peried [11.868] {9,662} [108.560)
Nureber of Units I dssue a1 Decemmber 31 2018 193,351 5.544.008 5.737.350
Nt Asser Valee per Unit at Decereber 31, 2015 s 8198 UsD 912
Subscrigtions for Units

USD Class Units may be subscribed for by Eligible investors during the nitial Offer Pericd at the initial purchase price of
USTH 10,00 per Unit. JPY Hedged Class Uinits may be subscribed for by Eligide investors during the mitial Offer Period at the
Initial purchase price of 19% 10,000 per Unit. The inital Offer Pericd commenced on June 18, 2018 and ended on June 27,
F018, In additicn to the subscription price, the applicant shall pay o sales charge calculated at up to 3% (excluding any tax
apphicable] of the purchase price, 1o the Dstrbutor.

During the Irdtial Offer Period, the minimum subsoiption for USD Class Units per subscriber is 10 Units of mare, and in
multiples of 1 Unit therea®ter, During the intial Offer Peried, the minimurn initial subscoription for JPY Hedged Qass Units
per subscriber is 1 Unit of more, and in maltiples of 1 Undts thereafter,

On and after the initlal Cesing Day, the mindmum subscription for USD Class Units per Unithelder i elther 10 Units or
mare, and in rultiphes of 0.000 Units thereafter or USD 100, and in madtiples of USD 0.01 thereafter. On and after the
Initial Chosing Day, the minimum subscription for 1PY Hedged Class Units per Unitholder is either 1 Unit or mere, and in
multiples of X Units thereafter or JPY 10,000 and in muBiples of 1Y 1 theeeafter,

The Manager may walve or change the minemum initial and additional subscripticn ameunts set forth above in its sole
diseretion from tire to tme.

Unit Redemptions

The Fund recognizes redemptions in accondance with the authortative guidance on distinguishing liabilities from equity.
Redemptions, whether expressed as United States Dellar, Japanese Yen or Units, are recognized as labilities when each of
the lapanese Yen and United States Dellar Unit amoeunts requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed, which
generally may eccur efther at the time of the receipt of the netice, o on the last day of a fiscal year, depending on the
nature of the request. As a nsult, redemplions paid after the end of the pedod, but based upon year end net assels are
reflected as redemptions payable a1 Decernbrer 31, 2018 There were USD nil and 1P nil of redemptions paable as at
Decemnber 31, 2008 induded as Payable for Units redeemad in the Statemant of Asseéts and Liabilities,

Aepurchose of Unirs
Units may be repurchased at the option of Unithelders on eadch Repurchase Day,

Unitholders wishing to have Units repurchased mast send a completed Repurchase Notice to the Distributer so as to be
received by the Distributor no later than 3:00 p.m. (Tokyoe time} on the relevant Repurchase Day, The Distribanos will send
the completed Repurchase Notices to the Sub-Administrator by no later than 6:00 pom. (Tekyo time} on the relevant
Repurchase Day or by such other tirme as the Sub-Administrator rmay in any particular case determing,

1# thar rebmvant Repurchase Netice i net repeived by the Sub-Administrator by the relevant time, the Repurchase Netice will
e held over until the mext Repurchase Day and Units will then be redeemed at the relevant repurchase price applicable on
that Repurchase [Bay, in the event either the day after the relevant Dealing Day or the day falling twe days after the
redevant Dealing Day s a day on which banks or stock exchanges in lapan are nal open for normal busivess, any
Repurchase Notioe recetved on sudh Oealing Day, shall net be accepted and instead, will be accepted on the next Dealing
Ceay.

A Repurchase Notice, onoe given, ks imevocable.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from June 28, 2018 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2018

UNITS (contineed)

Compulsary Redemption

In the event that the Trustee or the Manager shall determine that any Units of any dlass of a Fund are being held by or for
the benefit of a person who is not an Eligible nvestor for such Fund or that such holding would cause the Trust o the Fund
1o be required to register, be subject to tax or violate the ks of any jusisdiction, or il the Trustee or the Manager hat
reason to doubt the legitimacy of the spurce of monles used 1o fund the subsoription or purchase of such Units, or for
whatever reason {which may not be dischsad by the Trustee or the Manager to Unitholders) that the Trustee or the
Manager considers appropriate a1 its absohne disoretion having regard to the interests of the Unitholders of the relevant
Class or the Unithclders of the Fund as a whele, then the Manager, after conmaltation with the Trustes, may direct the
holder thereof 1o sell (subject 1o the provisions described below in the section headed *Transfer of Units"} sudh Units
within 10 days and previde to the Tnstee and the Manager evidence of such sale, fadling which the Manager may redesm
wich Linits.

Termination of the Fund
Upen termination, the Manager will realize all the assets of the Fund, and after paying out or retaining adequate provsion
for all kabilities properly payable and retaining provision for the costs of the termination, the Trustee shall distribute the
procecds of that realization o the Unithelders proporticrately o thelr respective intenssts in the Fund as of the date of
termination of the Fund.

Distributions to Unithoiders

The Manager may, from time 1o tme, i its sole discretion, declare distrbautions from May 2009, Distribation will be
declared annsally en each Distribution Record Date and calculated on each Ex-Distribution Date. Distribantion Pericd is a
period commencing from the calendar day fellowing the preceding Distribution Record Dote and ending on and including
the Distribartion Recerd Date. The distributions will be paid on the relevant Distribution Payment Date, provided that such
armeunt [if sy} declared with respect to the relevant Class of Units in respect of the applicable Distribution Period shall
onby be pald cut of the Fund's net income, realized and unrealized capital gaéns and any distributable funds of the Fund
amributable 1o such Class of Units a5 determaned by thie Manager,

The declaration of distribwtions to Undtholders reduces the Class Level et Asset Value per Uit withowt any comresponding
thange in the number of Class Level Units per Unithelder, This results in @ Unitholder's overall investment in the Fund
beirg reduced. In addition, any distributions during 8 perod which are in exopss of the Fund's pet increase in net assels
resulting from cperations results in a pertion of the distribution being retum of capital,

The amaunt of distributions, if any, will be determined by the Manager in s role disoretion, and no representation of
guarantee is made that a distribution will be made In respect of each or any MHstribution Pericd,

Copitalization

The Met Accet Value per Unit is coloutated for each Dealing Day (each Valuation Day, or such other day or days as the
Manager may from time to time determinag in respect of the Fund], by dividing the d@fference in vale between the Fund's
assets and liabdlities (induding acemsed fees and expenses of the Fund] by the mamber of Units outstanding.

The Trust Deed stipulates that the number of Units to be issued in the Fund shall be unlimited as the Manages shall
determine and shall be without par value.

DERIVATIVE AINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting Standard Codification [ASC) B15-10-50 requires disdosures about dertvative instruments and hedging sctivities,
It resquires. that the Fund disdose: a} how and why an entity uses derivative instemenis, b) how dervative instnements and
redated hadged items are accounted for and o) how derivative instruments and rolated hedged items affect an entity's
fimancial position, financial perfermance and cach flaws.

The Fund transacts foreard derivative instraments primarily for hedging purposes with each instrument’s primary risk
expoaure being foreign exchange risk. The forward foreign currency exchange contracts held by the Fund do not qualify as
hedges for accounting purposes under the requirements of ASC B15. The fair value of these dervative instmaments is
included in the Statement of Assets and Liobilities with changes in fair value reflected as realized gaing/losses} or et
change in ureealized appreciation/{depreciation] on derivatives within the Statement of Operations (Note 2L

Thi: Fund may enter into an inemational Swaps and Dervative Association, Inc, Master Agreement (“SDA Master

Agresement”} with Its counterparties v order to mitigate counterparty risk. The 15DA Master Agreement & typleally
negotiated by the Fund and its coumterparties, containing the bi-lateral terms and conditions for all subsequent derivative
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the peried from June 28, 2018 ({Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2018

DERIVATIVE FINANCAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)

transactions. The 54 Master Agreement allows for the netting of all amounts ewed to or due from counterparty into a
dngle net payment if 8 oredit event of def ol should ooour,

The Fund has elected to not offset fair value recetvables and payables fer derivative contracts on the face of the Statement
of Azeets and Liahahities.

AT Decernber 31, 2018 the Fund had entered into the following dervathve assets by counterparty ret of amounts avadable
for off set under a Master Netting Agreement {"BMNAT} and net of any collateral received by the Fund:

Dirivative A5wets Derivatives Hon-eash Cash Het Amount of
Counterpamy Subjectto 3 MMS  Aveilsble for Ot Collaters! Received Collaters] Received Derivative Asvets’
Brown Brathers Mariman & Co,  USD 1,547 LIED [LASTHUSD =sh =P £
Linl PR 472,886 (L0003} = = 452,583
Total ush 474,833 UsD |11,860) USD -UsSD — LD 462,973

At December 31, 2018 the Fund had entered inte the following dervative liabditles by counterparty net of amounis
available for offset under a MNA and net of any collateral pledged by tha Fund:

Deerivative Derirvatives Mon-cash Cash Het Amount of
Counterparty Usbilities  Availabie for Otfset Collateral Fledged Collateral Pledged  Derfuative
Subjeet tn @ MM . . Lia b ities
Brcwn Brothers Harmiman & to, | US TAET 5D TLAET) S0 ST ST -
il PB 10,003 {10,003 - - -
Total UsD 11,560 (11,850 USDH 05D —UED =

b sl aresenit sl (P L SEun recehatile/ payable Tronm the aSunberpanty i the swel of Selat

AT Decemnber 31, 2018 the Fund had entered into the following derivatives;

Haxet Derbvatiee Liahility Dusriwatives

Derivatives Statarmant Statement

Mot Accounted for as of Axsets and of Assety and

Hiedging | nstrsment s Linhilities Location FalrWalus Litalyilities Location Fair Valum

Forward foreign carensy  Unrealiced appeeciation \ewealiced depreciasicn

eechange rontracts on foreord forelgn omn forward foredgn

[Cumrenoy Ridk) mrency cachange LED 474833 murmency eachanges LI ] 11,880
coniracts conracts

The effect of derivative instruments on the Statement of Operations for the period ended December 31, 2018

Drerisvatives Mot Locstion of Realized Change in Unsealized
Acgnuntied Gain or [Loss] GRin or |Lows) Appreciation or

for as Hedging on Derivrt e on Dedartives |Dwpreciation) on
Inatr DinrlwaEl

Hes realized loss onforward forelign
Forward forelgn cmmency  curmency sechange contracts;

euchangr rontracts change in unrealized appreclation on forsard
{Currery Rik) foreign currency exchange tontracts WWISD {33175 USD 462 973
MANAGEMENT FEES

The Manager |5 entitled to recebse out of the assets of the Fund a management fee of a wial of up te 0.28% per anmum
{0L03% per annurn in respect of the fee for the Manager and D.25% per anmmam for the portion of the Net Asset Value up o
LSD 250 millipn, 024% per annum for the portion of the Net Asset Valee over S 250 million up to USD 500 mélicn and
0.27% per annam for the portion of the Met Asser Value over USD 500 million in respect of fee for the Investment
Manager} of the Net Asset Value accrued on, and caloulated as at, each Vahsation Day and payable monthly in arrears. In
addition, the Manager is also entithed 1o be reimbursed out of the asets of the Fund for any eapenses incuroed by it in the
proper performance of ts powers and duties as permitted under the Master Trust Deed.
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from June 28, 2018 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2018

MAMAGEMENT FEES {continued)

During the perod ended December 31, 2018, the Manager camned fees of USD 79,782, of which USD 16,253 is sl
‘outstanding as of December 31, 2018,

The Manager will pay the fees of the nvestment Manager out of its fees. The nwestment Manager will be responsible for
paying the fees of any of its delegates or other parties appointed by the Imrestment Manager te perform its functions in
respect of the Fund; provided, however, the Investment Manager may charge a ransaction fee on the subscriptions and
redemptions of shares of the Underhdng Fund.

CUSTODIAN AND SUB-ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fund has a custody and accounting agreement with Brown Brothers Harfiman & Co, (the "Custodian” and "Sub-
Administrater”} for which the Custodian receives a fee caloulated and paid monthly based on total assers and transaction
volume

The Custodian and Sub-Administrater is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Fund an administration fee {induding
transher agent fee} on the Net Asset Valhee acorued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day at the following anmual
rate:

- 0U07% ug v dand including) WSO 250 million;

= (,06% up to {and including) USD 500 milion;

- 0.05% ower LS50 500 millicn.

Supch adminéstration fee is payvable monthly in arrears, and subject 1o the minirmam annual fee of USD 60,000, The Sub
Administrator is alse entitled to receive cut of the assets of the Aund fees for aurrency administration and execution
sepvices ot the rate of 0.05% per annum af the Net Asset Value of the relevant Unit Olass, subject 1o the minimum snmusl
fe of USD 50,000, in additien, the Custedian and Sub-Administrater is also entitfed 1o recedve customary safekesping fees
and transaction charges. All out-of pocket expenses of the Custodian and Sub-Adrminissrator shall alse be bomae by the
Funel During the pericd ended December 31, 2018, the Custodian earned fees of USD 48486, of which USD 25,286 = still
outstanding as of Decerber 31, 2018.

TRUSTEE FEES AND ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Trustee is entitled 1o receive out of the assets of the Fund a combined fee at the rate of 0UD15% per annurm of the Neo
Asset Valee sccrued on, and caloulated as at, each Valuation Day and payable quarberly in arrears, subject te a minimum
annual fess of USD 15,000, During the period ended December 31, 2008, the Trustee earned fees of USD 7,643, of which
USE 3, 746 is stll outstanding as of December 31, 2018

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

The Agent Company is entitled to recehes out of the assets of the Fund a fee at the rate of 0.03% per annm of the Met
Asset Value accrued on, and caloulated as at, each Valuation Day and payable quartesly in arrears. During the perod ended
December 31, 2008, the Agent eamed fees of USD 8 548, of which USD 5, 204 is still cutstanding as of December 31, 2018,

DISTRIBUTION FEES

The Dystributor s entitled to recefve out of the assets of the Fund a fee at the rate of 0.65% per annem of the Met Assat
WValue acereed on, and calculated a5 a1, each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. During the peried ended
December 31, 2018, the Distributors eamed fees of USD 185, 209, of which UAD 112,832 is still outstanding as of December
31, 2018,

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The costs and expenses in connection with the establishment of the Fund and the offering of the Units, togecher with the
establishment of the Trust, including the costs and expenses of preparing and printing any prospectus or explanatery
brochures requiced, are estimated 1o Mmownt 1o approximately USD 140,000, Such costs and expenses will be amortised
wiithin the first five (5} financal years of the Fund unless the Trustee decides that some other method shall be applied. The
Acdministrator receives USD 1,500 per annurn for FATCA J/ CRS compliance services.

That Unaberlying Rand is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Underbing Fund, a foe at the rate of 0065% per annuam of
the Net Asset Value of the Underbdng Fund
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the period from June 28, 2018 (Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2018

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Funel’s activities expose it 1o a variety of finandal fiske: market risk finduding price risk, interect rate risk, and curency
risk], credit risk and liquidity risk.

Muorket Risk
Allirvestments present a risk of loss of capital. The Investment Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of
wecuritied and other financial instrumente

The Fund's Imvestment management prodess iS5 described in Note 1 The primary determinant of the Runds ability to meet
its ohjective of mid 1o long term capital appreciation while sarning income is dependent on the performance of the
imvestment in the Underying Fund,

Thi values of the Fund’s iInvestments are affected by a number of factors, including bt not limited te, changes in the wider
econoery, financial and currency markets, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rate movements, The Fund enters
into forward contracts which to varying degrees represent a marke? risk in excess of the amount reflected on the Fund's
Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The notional ameunt of the contract represents the extent of the Fund's participation in
these financial instnements. Market risks assedated with such contrats arise due to The possible movements in foereign
curmency exchange rates underbing these insthements.

Otheer marker and credit nisks include the possibility that there may be an illiquid marker for the contracts, that the change
in the valee of the contract may not directly correlate with changes in the vabue of the undedying cumrencies or that the
counterparty to a forward contract defaults on its obligation to perferm under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
exposure 1o loss due to counterparty non-performance on epen futures, forwands, swap and options contracts is limited to
the unrealized appreciation inherent in such financial instruments which are recognized in the Statement of Assets and
Linbilities

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the potenial loss that the Fund would incur if the counterparties, failed to perform purasant 1o the
terma of their obhligations to the Fund. For exchange-traded contracts, the exchange acts as the counterparty 1o specific
transactiens and, therefore, bears the risk of delivery to and frem counterparties of specific positiens, The Fund's
management does not concider that credit risk related 1o open defivative contracts will have material adverse effect on the
financial conditicn of the Fund,

Alhough the Manager meniters the Custodian and believes it to be an apgropriate custodian, there is no guarantes that
this or any custodian that the Fund may wie from time o time, will ot becorme insehvent, which could bead 10 losses for
the Fumd.

While hoth the LS. Bankruptey Code and the Securities Imvestor Protection Act of 1970 seek 10 protect cusTomer property
in the event of a failure, insolvency or iquidatien of an institution, there is no certadnty that, in the event of a fallure of an
institution that has custody of Fund assets, the Fund would not incur losses da to its assets being uravailable for a period
of time, ulirmanely less than full recovery of its assets, or both, Because all of the Fund's cash is in custody with a single
institution, such kesses could be significant and could materally impair the ability of the Fund e achieve its investment
objective. The Fund is subject o credit risk 1o the extent that this instimution may be unable o fulfill s obligations o repay
amounts cwed,

Liguidity Risk
Inwestors showld be aware that the value of Units might fall as well as rise. [rwestrment in the Fund invelves a degree of risk;

there can b no adsurance that the Fund's investment objective will be achieved,

Thir Fund & exposed to dally repurchase of its Units but management belleves that the Fund has sufficient rescarces to
et the present and foreseeable needs of its business operations and, if necessary, the liquidity to furd reporchases and
achieve a marke! position apprepriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This pesition is menitered continually by
management to erswre that the Fund has the ability 1o meet its obligations.

The Trustee, after consultation with the Managers, may suspend the suance and repurchase of units and pranents in
respect of such ransactions in any circumstances wheee the calculation of the Undedying Fund's Net Adset Value per unit
i= suspendied, The Trustes will inform unitholders of such a suspension as seon as practicable after it is mposed or lifted,
Subscription applicaticns and repurchase netioes cannot be withdrawn during such suspension and will be processed for
the next Dealing date. All Unithelders of the Fund will be promptly notified in writing of any sudh suspersion and will be
promgily notified upon termination of such suspension,
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TRP US CORE GROWTH EQUITY FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the peried from June 28, 2018 ({Commencement of Operations) through December 31, 2018

FIMANCIAL FUSK MANAGEMENT [continued)

Currency Ritk

The Unit price of USD Class Units is determined in USD, and the Unit price of IPY Hedged Class Units i determined in
Japanese Yen while the Fund is denominated in U5, dollars. The Fund, howeves, may invest a portion, or all of, its asge in
other currencies, of in insiruments denominated in non-lapanese Yen or non-US Dollar eurrencies, the prices of which will
he determined with refevence e such non-lapanese Yen or non U5 Dollar cumencies. The value of the Fund's assets will
fluctumte with Japanese Yen exchange rates ad well a5 the price changes of it invvestments in the various becal madkets and
currencies.

The Fund slso may utilize options and forward contracts 1o hedge against ourrency fluctuations, bat there can be no
assurance that such hedging transactions will be etfective, and such technioues entadl costs and additional risks.

The investmen: manager monitors the Fund's our ency exposure on a daily basts,
BORROWINGS

The: Manager andfer s delegates may borrow menies for the account of the Fund provided that 7 will net bormew maney
if, as a result of such borrewing, the aggregate amount of cutstanding bomrowings effected on behalf of the Fund would,
immediately followirg such barrowing, exceed 10% of the value of its et assets, save that this limit may be excopdad
temporarly for a period net exceeding 12 menths in special siuations incheding, without kmitation, a merger of the Fund
with angther seres trust, investment fund or other type of collective investment scheme,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the: neermal course of business, the Tastes on behall of the Fund may enter inte contracts thal contain a vadety of
representations and warrantes and which provide general indemnifications. The general indermnifications apply not only
to the extent sucth representations and warranties are uniruoe bt also may cover third parties such as the Fund's
Administrator, Auditor or fnvestment Manager for claims related to the services performed for the Fund The Trustee's
maximaem expossre under any such amangements is unknown, a8 expesune ondy anises o the exent future cladms that
have not et ocoumred are made against the Trestes. However, based on experience, the Trustes expects the risk of loss to
e remote,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subsequent events redew up to June 17, 201% which 15 the dote the financial staterments wene
availlable to be jsswed.

Effective lanuary 1, 201% through fune 13, 2001%, there were subscriptions of S0 241,368 and there were redemptions of
USD 2,381 BB inrespact of JPY Hedged (lass Undts. Thire wre distributions of nil in respect of JPY Hedgod Class Units,

Effective Janasary 1, 2019 threugh June 13, 3015, there were subscriptions of USD 6,719,537 and there were redemplions
of IS0 27,864,443 in respect of USD Class Units. There were distributiens of il inrespect of USD Class Urits.

Thare are no other sgnificsnt events to report 25 they relate to the Fund,
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2020
55,998,590.37 5,984,569,353
454,964.29 48,622,034
55,543,626.08 5,935,947,319
3,754,036
118,159
11.56 1,235

10,979
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40 Water Street Boston, MA02109-3661 U.S.A.
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4,698

2020

11
15

212,848,696,343
2,728,862,173
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2019 31
2019 2018
3,938,928 420,953 2,282,080 243,886
3,190,108 340,927 4,264,282 455,724
71,250 7,614 71,250 7,614
7,200,286 769,495 6,617,612 707,224
7,200,286 769,495 6,617,612 707,224
146,480 15,654 185,000 19,771
124,271 13,281 107,593 11,498
2,462,391 263,156 3,623,292 387,221
2,733,142 292,091 3,915,885 418,491
480,000 2019 31
2018 31
480,000 480,000 51,298 480,000 51,298
3,987,144 426,106 2,221,727 237,436
4,467,144 477,404 2,701,727 288,734
7,200,286 769,495 6,617,612 707,224
17 2019
129332
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2019 31

2019 2018
3,938,928 420,953 2,282,080 243,886
3,190,108 340,927 4,264,282 455,724
71,250 7,614 71,250 7,614
7,200,286 769,495 6,617,612 707,224
1 0.107 1 0.107
1 0.107 1 0.107
7,200,287 769,495 6,617,613 707,224
146,480 15,654 185,000 19,771
124,271 13,281 107,593 11,498
2,462,391 263,156 3,623,292 387,221
2,733,142 292,091 3,915,885 418,491

480,000 2019 31
2018 31
480,000 480,000 51,298 480,000 51,298
3,987,145 426,106 2,221,728 237,436
4,467,145 477,404 2,701,728 288,734
7,200,287 769,495 6,617,613 707,224
17 2019

129332
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2019 31
2019 2018
22,335,065 2,386,948 28,757,335 3,073,296
22,335,065 2,386,948 28,757,335 3,073,296
(1,276,979) (136,471) (1,383,168) (147,819)

(19,056,557)  (2,036,574) (25,366,385)  (2,710,906)
(20,971) (2,241) (18,121) (1,937)
(161,343) (17,243) (247,668) (26,468)
(20,515,850)  (2,192,529) (27,015,342)  (2,887,130)

1,819,215 194,420 1,741,993 186,167
(53,798) (5,749) 63,803 6,819
(53,798) (5,749) 63,803 6,819

1,765,417 188,670 1,805,796 192,985

1,765,417 188,670 1,805,796 192,985

1,765,417 188,670 1,805,796 192,985

113/188



2017

2018

2019

31

31

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 31
¢ > Cc > C )y <« ¢ > C )
480,000 51,298 1,415,931 151,321 1,895,931 202,618
1,805,796 192,985 1,805,796 192,985
(1,000,000)  (106,870) (1,000,000) (106,870)
480,000 51,298 2,221,727 237,436 2,701,727 288,734
1,765,417 188,670 1,765,417 188,670
480,000 51,298 3,987,144 426,106 4,467,144 477,404
2019 31
2019 2018
1,819,215 194,420 1,741,993 186,167
(53,798) (5,749) 63,803 6,819
1,765,417 188,670 1,805,796 192,985
1,074,174 114,797 (2,374,066) (253,716)
(1,182,743) (126,400) 2,208,357 236,007
1,656,848 177,067 1,640,087 175,276
(1,000,000) (106,870)
(1,000,000) (106,870)
1,656,848 177,067 640,087 68,406
2,282,080 243,886 1,641,993 175,480
3,938,928 420,953 2,282,080 243,886
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2019 31
309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2019 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
IFRS 16 2019
1ASB IFRS
2019 31 2018 31
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JPY GBP SGD
2019 31
2018 31 10
2019 2018
JPY 54,000 227,000
GBP 95,000 46,000
SGD 56,000 149,000
2019 31 2019
3,938,928 3,938,928
3,190,108 3,190,108
71,250 71,250
146,480 146,480
124,271 124,271
2,462,391 2,462,391
2018 31 2018
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2,282,080 2,282,080

4,264,282 4,264,282

71,250 71,250

185,000 185,000

107,593 107,593

3,623,292 3,623,292

2019 31 2019 31
2019 31 a
@ ®) ®)

) C C C
4,735,296 339,775
9,478,941 1,253,147
2,634,320 307,671
2,071,148 549,065
136,852 12,733
19,056,557 2,462,391

2018 31 2018 31
2018 31 a
@ ®) ®)

) C C C
8,480,224 2,231,327
10,465,491 792,235
3,643,329 223,129
2,605,050 204,310
172,291 172,291
25,366,385 3,623,292

(a
(b
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCLAL POSITION
ASAT 31 MARCH 20019
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2232060
4254252
T1,250

6517612

LT Rt e

185,000
109593
EE-E e

LB

Nitee 2
Adsens
Currend Assets
Cash and cath equivalents 4 3958508
Avcounts pecur alibe 3,190,108
Avccried s shd prepald eeperee 71,250
Total Current Assers 7,200, 286
Total Non- Current Assets
Total Assels 3 7,200, 28
Liabilities and Equity
Curna Lishilikies
Aciued expenses and deferred income ] 146450
Acoounts payabls 124101
Ammoants payable bo group wederbalongs L3 246239
Total Current Liabilities Fara il v
Erquity
Capital and Beserves Attributable i Equity
Hodders of the Company

Share capital (51 por wadue, 480,000 dares
wuthorized, $80,000 shares izued snd 450,000
dutstand g at 31 March 2009 and 2018

450,000

2IZV 2T

201,727

Folaired sarmungs 3,967, W4
Total Equity o, 45T e
Total Labilites and Equity 5 T, 200, 256

GELTAL2

The arriecad nobes from 1 bo 8 form an mdegral part of thess franaal staterments

The firancal sabements onpages 2 b 1T were approved by sritten resolidion of the Board of Tirectars on 2 August 2019 and

athonsed for 1z and signed on itz behalf by

Compary regrtaned oombaor. 125332
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MIKEQ AM CGLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
COMPARY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ASAT 21 MARCH 200%

Nale 2009 2018
Ass
Curremt Assets
Cuzh and cash epuvalets i aee o 2,262 (a0
AT racsTabe 3190108 4,104 2852
Acaued inoome and prepond epenos 71,250 TE 25
Total Current Assets 7,200,286 £617,512
Mim- Cuarrent Assets
e estrneend. 1 Subswdary ] 1 1
Total Non-Current Assels ] 1
Toral Assets 3 TMZET F 6617613
Liabilities and Equity
Current Lisbilties
Acorund expanses and deferred sncome £ a4sd  § 1E5, 000
Accmicks payrable 12227 107 593
Arnoures payrsble to grosp mdertakings & 2443 351 3,603 240
Total Current Lisb e 2,733,142 L LS
Fquiny
Capital and Feserves Attributable to Equity
Hudders af the Comnpary
Share capdal (31 par value, 450 000 shares suthonzed,
480, 000 shares 15aped and outstanding o 31 Manch A50,000 A0 000
2018 and 2018)
Retame] esrmungs 3,587,145 2a1.ns
Total Equity AT 148 2,700,728
Total Liabilities and Equity 3 TA0ZET F G617 S1E

The seroened fioles from 1 be & form an anbegral part of thess firancal satements

The firarcial statermenks on pages 8 to 17 ware spproved by written resclition of the Bosrd of Directors on T August 2019 and
mthonsed for 1zane and ngred on its behalf by

Company apserad srember 120332
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NIKEQ AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARE ENDED 31 MARCH 019

Note 2019 2008
Op erating Revenues
Invedment managemant and wdvisory fees from theed parties 5 pedea e . 28,757,535
Total cperating reversses 2335085 23,757,335
Operating Expenies
Sub-advizory fees with thaed parties (1T (1,383, 168)
Bub.advisory fees with group undertalong & {2058 35T (25,308, 3855
A fees 20571 [AEAFIM
Other cperating and adminifirsisre expenses {161,343) (4T, 6550
Tetal operating axpenses (20,515,5500 (27.015.3425
Operating Profic 3 L 1, 741553
Other Tiscome | (Expenses)
Crther incomes'(zxpense), Het foragn exchonge gam(bos) (33,758 3803
Tuokal cher epanse [ ] 63803
Proft Before Income Tax 1, Tes 417 1,808, 7
Ipeome tax expense 4
Frofit attributakle to equity hokders of the parmt 1,765,417 1 H05, 7946
Cther Comprehensive Encome for the year . -
Tatal Comp rehemnsive Incmme for the year 5 1785417 % 1,805,796

#cll the Group® s opertvons are chenfied a5 contmumng,

The arrreted riobes from 1 bo # form an srdegral part of thess fenandal staternente
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MIKECG AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] MARCH 019

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

N -:S: E.I:I. E;TE Tonl
Ealance st 1 April 2007 - 30,000 £ 1415941 ] 1,808 dnq
Het prod 1,505, 796 1,B05, 796
Davidend pasd S 1,000,001 {1, 00000)
Balance &t 31 March 2008 5 80,000 $ 2.7 5 2,701,727
Het prof 1, 765417 1,765 417
Davidand paid - - -
Balance # 31 March 2019 5 20,000 5 AET1H 5 4.467,144

The ansieead fiobes from 1 bo & form an dnbegral part of thess Granaal statesnanis
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 019
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Kot 2019 e
Cacth Flows from Operating A ctivities
Crperating Profie L 3 1815215 1,741,550
Adfustroemnts for
Hek foreagn exdhange los (53,758 43,803
Operatoml cash flows befom movemmits mworkng
capital 1,765 417 1205 70
Changes in operting assets and Bab ilicbes
Diecreass |/ {increxse) m receivables 100,174 (3374, 068)
(Dicrense) / moreaze m payubles Cr 12 Ta3) el
Nt Cash Cenerated from Operating Activities 1,656,240 LT
Cash Flows from Financing Acth ities
Dneidends pard - (1,000,000 )
et Cash Tron Fioand ng Acivities - {180, 00T
Nt Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,656 240 007
Cush and cash squivalents, beginnmng of the yar 2,282 el 1841593
Cath and Cnsh Equivalents, End of the Year i 1,008 = 2282 080

The aerreted robes from 1 bo @ form an andegral part of thess fandaal staternents
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MIKK O AM GLOBAL CAYMANLTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] MARCH 2019

Mode 1 - General Inform ation

Hikhoo AR Flobal Cayman Lid  the Company™) and #5 subsidary (bogether “the Group®) mre incorported ed domaaled o the
Cayman Tflaeds The address of the registared cffice is PO B 3090T, Uglind Houss, South Chisrdh Street, Grand Cayenan,
Coyman Elands The prevegel sctivities of the Group and Company durng the pear were the proveson of neesiment advice and
mystrnent maragarent s ices bo ted partvess and olfver grag membears These pan-dabubory Fmancial staterments have e
prepared to 33 the preparation of consclsdated fnsncial sttements For the ipbarmediste parent compay

Hote 2 - Summary of Significant Acconnting Principles
The pracipal mocounting polsces sdoplted xre cof ot bel ow

Fasl of prejaration

The Growp and Company's inancal datemenishavebeen prepeed in sccordance with Intem atior! Fooncal Reporting Stendards
at adopled by the Evrcpean Thnson (IFES: a2 sdopled by the EUD and IFRIC miltepretabions apphicabile to comparnes reporting
under IFRS. Az ol 31 biarch 2005, the Comgany had adopted all IFR.S5 mnd mberpretations that had been isnsed by the Inbarrational
Acsnirbing Bandards Boand ¢ LASE™) and Inbernational Financial Repoting Inlapretations Camirnties & IFRIC™), wd endocsed
ty the ET. The accounbng polroes gef ol balow hors bean applisd consistently to all permods presented m these financal
Aatemerds [FREs comgriss scoounting standands ierued by the TASE and its prodecessor body s well a5 nterprotations iesued by
the IFRIC and it predecesor body

Bask of consolidation

Pubmdiariesare entdies controdled by the Group. Costrol mtists when $e Group hise the power to g the fnancial s operating
polaces of an ality 0 & bo chiaen berefits from ks schivibes In aspemrng cvntrol, the Orogp Lakoes inbo conaideration potertml
votzng nights thet are corantly exercimble The scquintion dabe & the date an which confrol is trensferred to the sogare. The
[rnanesl stabements of subsidmnes oo inchaded inthe conselidated [maneial stabsenerts from the dabe that control cornmmenoes
unis] the date tha condrol cexses Losses spplicable to the non-conbrolling inkerests m 2 sobadisery are allocated bo the non-
wonitrodhng mbereds san of doing mmﬁ\e eronecoritredlmg inderests 1o have o defiot balance.

Seandards and imterpretations Esaed bt e yet dTective
IFE.E 16 Lease Accambing 1 effective from 1 Jamuary 2019 The company has no lmses 2o there 15 no effed of the stinderd o

The comgarty

Tiew ccoant ing standards adopied
The LASE has pmased severs| sanendmenits to IFREs that are first effectee for the aament accounting persod of the company. Mooe
of these developensnts hathad a matenal ampact to the corganmy’ s finacal statemns

Measurememnt convent ion
The Gnancal staternats have boon prepared under the hasterscal oot sanventaon

Estimates and assumptions

The properation of francial statements pequires manxpemmant bo malor estemabes and assumptions Bt affect the smounts reported
For aspetz and lisbililzes as o the balence sheat dabe wnd the amounts reported for reveues and expenes during the year. The nahere
of estarrudyon rrvéan 5 that sctual sutcomes could differ from these estimates. The asarmpbions and estemates, whech are contamuciasly
reviewed, are based on pact experience & other factors, meluding sopectations regarding likely dovelopments o the fubze AL
31 March 201% and 3018 there ware no matenal adenates cr lmlrphm

Accounts receivable

Acoourts recevable include smaounts due for mansgement, advisoey end performance fees and smounts due from custorners and
otfsare Al acconts peceviab e ane repayable on demand or within o yesr They are recorded in the balanes shest ab cont, reduced
by wppropriabe allow snices for estinnabed rrecow arable smousits, and they wre mierest beanng

Accounis payable

Acenizks papsbbe nchade smounts dus for sub-advisory seevices and performance e and amoonts dee to vendoes and others
Al wootarks paysble are chaszified aecordng bo the aubstance of the contractual armirgernent endered tnbo. They are payrable on
demand o shithn one yeir and are recorded on the balance sheet of oot Amounts owed bo group undestakmgs e ursecured,
mberest Eee and have no ficed berms of repayenent

Cady and eash equ bvalemts

Cash ard cash eqaivabenbs comprise cash m banks snd 1n hasd end short-Serm depomits wnth an onigenal matuny of three mmonths
o besz and forengn currencies held by the Group and Company. For the purpeses of e cach fow staterment, cach and cash
equralals consd of cash and cath egavalents a2 defred sbove, nat of culdardmg back overdrafls

Operating revemies )

Cpersling revenues include commasmons and iowestment maragenen, awedtment advizory and performnance fees

revenies are menained o the S valee of the consudenation receved or recervable for sarnces provided m the nommal courss o
bairmiess, nat of dizoousts, trasl Doz, VAT and other salespelabed fanes

IFRE 15, Revere from Confracts with Custormers replaced LAS 18 Revenue snd mdrodacesd o five ftap mpproach to revenoe
recogrdiion: O identifymp the contract with the customner, u) sdentifing the perforenance chifpations, s} identily the contract price
{ mssocasted reveriie, ) allocate the considerstion to the relevast performamee chligations, and v recognisng the reveae as the
performrancs chligalvons are satisfied
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The Company has spplied ITFRE 15 refrospedialy, bt bes ddenmined that there 1 no adpusbment $o the retssned esmmgz e ot |
Agnil 20018 Comparative informabion has not been aflected and therefors norestatement i regquased . The Conpany hasurrdertadoen
arewiew of &3 condradts with cusiomens mnd conclided that there i3 o smpact on the way tnwhich & recograses dsrevenaes asne
element of 15 revenue pelies on estimates or 15 subject b reversal or significant reciatement

Conmmissions and mvestment mans gament xnd advisory fees and ssscciated charges are recogrised when the services concemed
arererdered Investrnent managenent and advatory feet are caloulabed a2 a percertages of asoas under management Cormfromion:
e rocgri pid on 8 Eade dafe bases, caloulabed onoa percentags of the sale Performance fees are recogrused n the peniod @ which
ey beacorme dos and oolleciable

Operating exprises
Omperating expenses are gocounted For when they bescome payable

Dividenads
Equity dmaderds bo the dhardholder of the Oreip are pecognised a2 a liabildy @ the parvod derng whads they are declared and
approved.

Forelgn currencies
The fanctiona] sd presendstscnal correnay of the Group and Comgeny & TS dollars (52

Trrssdions m curances ofher than U8 dellars are recorded af the rabes of endhangs prevalmng on the dates of the ransachons
Al each balance heet date, monelary aspets snd liabilites that ase dencorranabed in forsign cusrencies are setranalated at the rates
peeadlicg on the balines dheet date Mon-monetiey asoets and lisbilfies cirmed o fair vahes that ase danomirated in forsign
mu:nmiﬂdlhrﬂsmﬂmgdﬂxiﬂzwhm!uu&mmmd Jams end |osses sreing on retramatahon
areanchided in net prolit or boss for the pemod, sncept for enchange differences srang onnea-meonetary stz and lakalities where
the changes in fur value are recogrised drectly m equity

Finan< al instnamenits

FRE ¥, Financial Instrusments replaced theclassilication endmesnmemant contained in 1AS 39 Finencial Ingnaments: Recogniion
] Measirernent (LAS 38 I accondanos with IFRS 9, the Company”s fnancial asoets have been reclasabed st srmorted cost,
far value Beough other comgeehmsme mncome or Bir value through ymﬂt o loss The Company has spplied [FRE &

retrospectivaty, with the mtenton of mduding sy requirsd ady il bo d mmmgs &= ot 1 Apad 2018 Compartive
Eforrration bz rot been restabad

The vast n'u]u'i.}l-n!'l}nf:u'rpn}l‘: fmaneisl maruments are cash and recevables which are menared ot smortised cod.

Following the Company's sdoplion of IFR.E %06 1 Aprl 2018 the Company has evalusted potenbial creddt Josses on all Emancial
At it e Mryatied o asmeoetised cost Factors considerad i daterminan whether a defai® i Lizely or possib be inchade whather
& payment i overdue (and the bength of that period), sy knosm deariorstion m e credit quality of a clienticounterparty o olher
tsaa et that could sdverssly affed a clant' sioourterparty’s cradi qualdy

For firaneial srsets whers there o no bmown e affecng credit quality, expecied ared logses are caloulabed based on the lowses
that s expacted bo be incurred over a rollmg trelvemonth paresd Green the nalire of the Company’ s financial assebs (1.4 mostly
cash ot bark), there i a very low oredit sk The Company i1 also conmdering the uoe of money market funds 1o noreage
divernficabion and further reduce credit ngk

Fer any lirancnl assde whers the contractual payrst  mmore than 30 days past dae, the defauk posiion £ 1o a8 &0 Daae
moedd nde Howewrer, defmilk levels nﬂupu‘th:.ub-nﬂ'l. ermadens] amd Hrere were no fee receresbles past dos oot 31 Merch
29

Trovestmamats in subsidiaries
Ineestreents in subsidierses are stabed o the parent comp sery's bakance sheet at cost less any provisions for enparmant

obe & — Investment in Subsidiary
COMPANY

Al 31 March 200% and 31 klerch: 3018 the Company had an owedment of §1. In the opmion of the dredtors, the Company's
mvastenent 18 not s aired. Details of the i estrect are a2 follows

Number, class and
percenzage of shares
Hikdeis AR (City i) Ltd Gmeral partrier LCnT iRy st
meu of £1, 100%

Mote 4 — Taxaton

M]!Mﬁ[?ﬂﬂ&hlﬂn&whﬂhk{nﬂuﬂrﬂplﬁdﬂwﬂuﬂpﬁw profis s %4 because there & no bax leveed
mCl:,n'n.m :hrl.d.rmrp.l'ue:
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Note 5 - Finmmcial Risk Faclors

The Grog ard Company"s fnancal instruments compaite cath and cash squvalents and recarsble and payab s balmeoss that
wrese from 25 duily cpemtions Al cash and cash equmalents ie camied o cost which i considered b i proximate bo fuir vaboe
due 1o the short berm matursty of these Bnancal nidruments The mam ndos azsociabed with the Grosp and Campany's fnancal
asiats el labulilies are sl ol bejow

Credit risk

Credit nsk &5 defined as She risk of fnencil loss due'to a counbapoety s failurs o honour its cbligatson preicpally im relibion ko
transactions whene the Group or Company prosides goods o services on defered barms and whene & mvests or deposits orplus
cazh The Group or Comgany do nct beher e that they are maberally apozed to oedit ke &3 ks mbes debbors are managed group
Bands ared theratore managerment snd perlormancs fees recemable ste govemed by & agreaments with theze finds To rrotigate
vy remidual rishe of these pssets fnilng 1o be defwersd, the CGroop ;d Company engare tha the terme of thess sgredmants in
relabion o payrenls of managemnent and perforenan s fees are sdlired 1o by moralonrg 13 aged deblor ana ez agaiest the agresd
srvice level agresments

The g and Cornpany adopls the palicy of debing writh asfomers of sppropnate aredd hstory. For ofher [mandal asses, the
Group and Company sdopts tepolcy of dealing with financial mstauisons and other coxmberpuetios with high cedit ratings. Thare
dre o Ernosl astdts pad diss s/ or irpared as o8 31 Maech 2009 and 2018 Trade recerrables are due ot leasl quacterty, and are
normally settled within 30 duys of ther due date There ase no ovendue rwde recerrabbes at the balincs shest date

Further, with regasd to bank deposds, the Group and Comgany only deponts mooey with spprovend counterpartzss on agreed bams

Market risk

Markcet riske (or spsberme rigk) ar defined ag that risk which i ooenmoen Lo an snlee dlass of szets of habdises whereby ther valbue
can fuctuate simgly because of economis changes o other events that smpact large partions: of the market The Orogp and
Coripany do nok beliene that they are exposed Lo irabenal marke ride a2 e azsets the Group and Company rmanage are heid by
ared fr the benafit of fund holders Shrough separate legal entities

Currency ik
Qurrency nidk is dafined a5 the ndk that e vaboe of Group or Company azsets and histaltes denomanabed o aurrencs other than
the furchional currency of the Group or Company will dunge nsalue dee bo movaments 1 foram exdvmpe rabes  The Group
] Cotrpany are ecposed bo curensy misk artning from van ol cumeney expoades, primanly with respect to the Japaness Tan
(TEY), Bterling Pound (GBF) and Singapane Daollar (330). The Group and Company”s fee meome iz recérrod mamly m USD and
JEY, AL 31 Miwrch 2069 aned 2008, had these mmwmw Lir% againet the TRED mith all other vanables
mnehading tax rabe being held constant, e Jrogp and Company's profit befors tag for the Brancial year would have been
er a5 2 reaol of auerency ransiatson losses guing an the remainnig correndy depominated cashbalances, traderecevables

avd payabbes by the balow ameounts
CUTTEY a9 aE
{Fuotrded io neared £ 1]
Y § 54,000 5 27 000
GEF s, 000 44,000
230 56,000 145,000

Liquidiny risk and Mnancial sabeney ik

Liquidity risk is defined 2 the mdc that the Group or Comgany will not be able to meet ds fmancinl oblipations as they fall due
The Group ead Company’s sppeotch Lo managing i fid = bo saire that i has saflioend haeiddy to meet ibs liabidtaes when
due, both under nosenl and sessed condibons.

Capital management
The Group snd Compey capaal ponbon 1z moritored on an ongeeng basis 1o msure that & 5 sdequate There are no etamally
mmp osed caprlal requmements

Falr Value of Financial Tnd naments
The e values of fimmoed aszets and fimancial hisbalfes that ere raded m achive marckets ane based on quoted markd pnces or
hhmm For all other finencial retnaments, the Group determmies fr valies usmg ofr valuation techmigues

Fer firareaal metnaments that trads mirequectly snd havs hitle peice Sangarency, fur valoe o bz obhpedave, and requres varying
degrees of pdpement depending on squidity, concentration, uncertuinty of market Ewctors, pricing sraumptions end other pzks
sffeding the mecific mdrument.

The Whlebelow analyses financal sstnanents, mibo o fair value hisrardhy based on the vahustion bechnique used bo deterrone fair
vahue

& Level 1 quoled preces (unadiuted) i sctive markets foe sdentacal assets or lubilities

® Level 20 irgouts other than quobed prrces mebuded withi Lavel 1 that are cbasrvwable for the asset or Habilidy, either deectly
(e, as prces) of indeectly (Lo, deewed from prices)

@ Level 3 irguas for the asvet or Habildy that are not based on obeervable marlet daka (on chearvable mpuls)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year mded 31 March 2019 —Levell Level 2 Ll 3 Total 2019
Asyee ] H 2 H

Cazh wnd cash equiwalent Bkt b - 3938908
Accounts recevable 3,150,108 RSB
A inoorme and prepand eqpate 71,250 1,250
Linbilities

Acmusd expmo and deferred meame 144,400 146, ey
Accounts payatile 124,271 128,271
Atoounts pgwll-lum 3462361 246230
Year mded 31 March 3013 Levell Level2 Level 3 Total 2018
Asis 5 H S 5

Cash ard cash squeralent 2282 0bi) 2283 iy
Acooiants recawablie & 28 a2 el )
Ao neode and prepaid apmae 71250 71.2%
LEbilities

Acenss] stpames and delemed moome 165 000 165,000
HAccounts payable 167553 100, 558
i pryablato grovg 162329 323,202

MIKK O AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
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All fruaeeia] sasets and [mbalies xne carrsed at historical cost. The far vatues of all feancial assts and habdities aee mimlae to
ther carymig vahees owing b theer thort bermn nakhure

Mote & - Helated Party Transaotons

Trarsections betwem the Groop mnd Sompeny and related partres sre disclosed below

Diebtor as Credibor x5 at
Operating Operating at 31 March 31 March
Year mded 31 March 2019 FEevemues Expenus (1) 2019 by FLLELT]
Wk doroed Bolana gament fumericas, Ine 3 = i 4 T35 108 z - g 339775
ko Axsst Mlans et Furop e Lid - SaATR ML - 1,253,147
Nicko Artel Managsnent Co, Lid - 2,634,320 - 307,671
Hidhop fusset Managesreent Azia Lid - 200,148 - 45,065
Hitko Adset Managernent Hong Keng - 136,852 - 12,733
Total 5 - 3 19085557 5 - 5 raszien
Debtor as Creditor x5 at
Operating Operating at 31 March 31 March
¥ear mded 31 March 2018 Revermies Expenses (a) MEmy )
Hikcko Agset Manaperent Ammericas, Ine 3 - 5 BALTIA 5 - 5 2231317
Wik Asscet dfanaypament Furop = Lid = 10,465 491 = TE2, 238
Witk Actet Manapenent Co | Lid - 3643120 - 223,129
Hicko Azset Management Ana Lid - 2605050 - 204,310
Hicko Assel Banagament Hong Kong - 172,21 - 172,291
Total i = 5 28 566,535 3 i ot s et d
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i} Operaling expermes pasd b0 relsied parbes sre pryable under mwveshmend monagement agreements and are for Band
mgﬂ'ﬁﬁilﬂm

1) The mrounts cubdanding ee maeared and will be setiled & cash. No guaranbees bave been piven orreceived. Ho provisions
Fsasee ety ircde for deubifil dadbis onrespedt of the amomnls owed by related paraes

Mikko Meset Managemend Armercas, Inc., Mikko Assst Mansgerment Europe Lid, Hkko Acsd Management A Lid and Hicko

A Marogermnt Hong Reng ee fellow gibadisries Hikke Asset Management Co., Lid & an indiredt. shareholder of the
sicrarertioned subadises

Mote 7 - Ultimute Holding Company

The Group o 4 wiielly owned sbsdiary of Mildeo AM Global Holdangs Lid, de snmedint s pasent wndatalang, & comjary widdh
iz registered = England wnd Wales

In the cpmion of the directors the ulbmabe parert company, and controllng party, 32 Samiome hMitns Tl Holdngs, Inc, »
company moarporated m Japan. Firaneial sadements for Sndome Mitan Trast Holdngs, Ine are aeaalable bo the puabhe froem

thelrsretor Relabions Office, Financial Plinning Deparbrent, Surmbermss bitso Trud Heldmgs, Ine 1. 0, Marincud, Chiyeda.
Teu, Toleyo 100-82 33, Jagan. Copies of the snnua] report can be wiewad orretraeved from

Mote 8 - Sabsequent Evenis

Bubepacquent bothe statement of fmancial postion date, Bhars wepe o everts which bad & aegad on Bhe consoladabed and midindual
Fnanca] stabernengs -ofmefm'pmy
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2019 30
2019 30 2019 31
4,585,248 490,025 3,938,928 420,953
3,986,475 426,035 3,190,108 340,927
23,752 2,538 71,250 7,614
8,595,475 918,598 7,200,286 769,495
8,595,475 918,598 7,200,286 769,495
109,725 11,726 146,480 15,654
138,187 14,768 124,271 13,281
2,976,237 318,070 2,462,391 263,156
3,224,149 344,565 2,733,142 292,091
480,000 2019 30

2019 31
480,000 480,000 51,298 480,000 51,298
4,891,326 522,736 3,987,144 426,106
5,371,326 574,034 4,467,144 477,404

8,595,475 918,598 7,200,286 769,495
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2019 30
2019 30 2019 31
4,585,248 490,025 3,938,928 420,953
3,986,475 426,035 3,190,108 340,927
23,752 2,538 71,250 7,614
8,595,475 918,598 7,200,286 769,495
1 0.107 1 0.107
1 0.107 1 0.107
8,595,476 918,599 7,200,287 769,495
109,725 11,726 146,480 15,654
138,188 14,768 124,272 13,281
2,976,237 318,070 2,462,391 263,156
3,224,150 344,565 2,733,143 292,091
480,000 2019 30

2019 31
480,000 480,000 51,298 480,000 51,298
4,891,326 522,736 3,987,144 426,106
5,371,326 574,034 4,467,144 477,404

8,595,476 918,599 7,200,287 769,495
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2019 30

2019 30 2019 31
9,984,488 1,067,042 22,335,065 2,386,948
9,984,488 1,067,042 22,335,065 2,386,948
(671,810) (71,796) (1,276,979) (136,471)
(8.303,679) (887,414) (19,056,557)  (2,036,574)
(6,164) (659) (20,971) (2,241)
(112,624) (12,036) (161,343) (17,243)
(9,094,277) (971,905) (20,515,850)  (2,192,529)
890,211 95,137 1,819,215 194,420
13,971 1,493 (53,798) (5.,749)
13,971 1,493 (53,798) (5.,749)
904,182 96,630 1,765,417 188,670
904,182 96,630 1,765,417 188,670
904,182 96,630 1,765,417 188,670
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2019 30

¢ > ¢ H > > >y )

2018 31 480,000 51,298 2,221,727 237,436 2,701,727 288,734
1,765,417 188,670 1,765,417 188,670
480,000 51,298 3,087,144 426,106 4,467,144 477,404
904,182 96,630 904,182 96,630
480,000 51,298 4,801,326 522,736 5,371,326 574,034
2019 30
2019 30 2019 31

890,211 95,137 1,819,215 194,420

13,971 1,493 (53,798) (5,749)

(748,869) (80,032) 1,074,174 114,797

491,007 52,474 (1,182,743) (126,400)

646,320 69,072 1,656,848 177,067

646,320 69,072 1,656,848 177,067

3,938,928 420,953 2,282,080 243,886

4,585,248 490,025 3,938,928 420,953
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2019 30
309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2019 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
1ASB IFRS
2019 30 2019 31
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IFRS 15

IFRS 15

2018

IAS 18
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IFRS 9 1AS 39 1AS 39
IFRS 9 ) ) )
2018 IFRS 9
2018 IFRS 9
12
30
2019 30
2019 30 2019 31
100
2019 30 2019 31
2019 30 2019 31
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30
JPY GBP SGD
2019 30
2019 31 10
2019 30 2019 31
JPY 67,000 54,000
GBP 93,000 95,000
SGD 54,000 56,000
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2019 30 2019 30
2019 30 a
® ® ®
C C C C

1,534,022 960,540

4,468,816 1,205,532

1,302,495 280,254

930,709 520,879

67,637 9,032

8,303,679 2,976,237

2019 31 2019 31
2019 31 a
@ ®) ®)
C C C C

4,735,296 339,775

9,478,941 1,253,147

2,634,320 307,671

2,071,148 549,065

136,852 12,733

19,056,557 2,462,391

(a
®
100-8233
IR

http://www_smth_jp/en/
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@
CIBC
CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2020 38,786,916 41 4,516
CIBC 1965
2020
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2019 12 1,010,000,000 1,079 3,870
(©))
UFJ PB
2020 80
UFRJ PB 2020 UFJ
UFJ
2020 405
(©)
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@
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)

®
CIBC
CINA
)

Q)

UFJ PB

)

®

UFJ PB

JSDA
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)
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1.1 1993
2020

2018
2019
1.2
1960

1.3
(a
2020 1993
2020
(b 2020

2020

1.4

2019 12 10,857
2,886
2020
2020

1.5

2.1 2020
CIMA

2.2

2.3

(a
(b

(a 2010
(® 2020 1998

(c
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2.4

2.5

2.6

2020

CIMA

CIMA

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

(a

(b

15

80,000

80,000

CIMA

2020
CIMA

100,000
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CIMA
2020
15
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA 100,000
CIMA



4.1

CIMA

CIMA

4.2 CIMA

(a
(b

(c
«
(e
2020

4.3

21
4.4 2006 12 27

CIMA

CIMA

5.1

5.2

5.3
CIMA
5.4 CIMA
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CIMA
21
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
2018
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
48
3.2
CIMA 10
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5.5 CIMA

(a
(b

(c
(d
(e

(i
(A 2020
¢ 2020 12
(C 2017

5.6 CINA

5.7

5.8 CIMA

6.1
(a

O

(c

«
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CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
(A (©
17
CIMA
24,390 30,488
8,536
36,585 42,682
8,536
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6.2

6.3

(f
@

(h
@

(k

(m

(n

(vii

30

(a

®

(c

«

(f

(9

(h
@i

1925

150

(a

O

CIMA

2018

20
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2020

1907



6.4

(c

(

(e

(f

(9

(h

@i

(k

(a

(b

@i

(vi

2013

2016

50
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2017



(c

«

(e

50

2014
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CIMA

7.1

7.7

(a
(b

(c
]

(e
(f

7.8

(a

(b

(c

«
7.9

(a

(b

(c

«

(e
7.10

7.11

CIMA

7.1

500

7.3

7.3

10

CIMA

CIMA

7.7

CIMA
CIMA

CIMA
7.7 CIMA

CIMA 7.9 CIMA

CIMA
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Independent Auditor”s Report

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of TRP US Core
Growth Equity Fund

Our opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of TRP US Core Growth Equity Fund (the Fund) as at December 31, 2019, and results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
What we have audited
The Fund’ s financial statements comprise:

the statement of assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2019;

the portfolio of investments as at December 31, 2019;

the statement of operations for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the financial highlights for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting

policies.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’ s responsibilities for

the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fund' s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements
are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to this
evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Fund.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’ s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Trustee in accordance with
the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or
into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
June 17, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (the “ Company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2019 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related notes including
the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons set out in note
1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (* ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms

of our engagement letter dated 3 May 2019. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and

appropriate basis for our opinion.

The impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial
statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and related
disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of
these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the company’ s future prospects and
performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are
subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We
applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the company’ s future
prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible
future implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the group or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the group and the company’ s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at
least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the group’ s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the group and company’ s financial
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resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these

respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the group will continue in operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director’ s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.
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Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

2 August 2019
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Independent Auditor”s Report

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of TRP US Core
Growth Equity Fund

Our opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of TRP US Core Growth Equity Fund (the Fund) as at December 31, 2018, and results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the financial highlights for the period from
June 28, 2018 (commencement of operations) through December 31, 2018 in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
What we have audited
The Fund" s financial statements comprise:

the statement of assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2018;

the portfolio of investments as at December 31, 2018;

the statement of operations for the period from June 28, 2018 (commencement of operations)
through December 31, 2018;

the statement of changes in net assets for the period from June 28, 2018 (commencement of
operations) through December 31, 2018;

the statement of cash flows for the period from June 28, 2018 (commencement of operations)
through December 31, 2018;

the financial highlights for the period from June 28, 2018 (commencement of operations)
through December 31, 2018; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting

policies.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’ s responsibilities for

the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.

182/188



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Fund' s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements
are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to this
evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Fund.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’ s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’ s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Trustee in accordance with
the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or
into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
June 17, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (“ the company” ) for the year
ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income,
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and related notes including the summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of its loss
for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs (UK)” ) and
the terms of our engagement letter dated 2 May 2018. Our responsibilities are described below. We have
fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK
ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of
accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
non-statutory accounts. We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the
preparation of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an
auditor’ s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it

exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It
has been released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or
disclosed, in whole (save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior
written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s
needs at the time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by
any party wishing to acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any

context. Any party other than the Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to
rely on our report (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of our report to any other party.

Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

25 July 2018
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